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First superstore -
46,000 square foot
“test store” - opens
adjacent to company

936 traditional stores

J

uperstore rollout
egins

Company begins
multiyear investment
in infrastructure
896-traditronal Stores

7 superstores

name becomes
Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.;
all stores now operate
under Jo-Ann name

984 traditional stores Opening of second
distribution center in
42 superstores Visalia, California
{12% of sales)

SAP Enterprise-wide

-H\Im‘orman‘on System

Algisition of
House of Fabrics, Inc.
(171 net additional stores)
1,034 traditional stores

24 superstores
(7% of sales}

implemented—~————__ |
Turnaround period

announced in

fourth quarter

949 traditional stores

58 superstares
(19% of sales)

* Denotes fiscal years
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As I reflect on our fiscal year-ended January 29, 2003, and look ahead to the future, T am proud of what the
Jo-Ann Stores tear achieved and very excited aboutwhat lies ahead.

We delivered solid growth in earnings per share during the past year despite the pressure of higher expenses
resulting from continued execution of our superstore transformation strategy. inchuding inereased store pre-
openinyg and closing costs from the inereased nuraher of new store openings.

More importantly, however. we refined and validated the financial model supporting the superstore format
and began to grow this last year. The impraved profitability of our existing superstores and the positive first-year
results achieved in our new, smaller prototype superstores underscore our firm belief that the planmed rollout of
this compelling concept will fuel susiained growth and create opportanities for customers, team members. vendors
and shareholders alike.

By focusing on and delivering on several vore strategies, we increased earnings per share by 11 percent during
fiscal 2005, Our efforts were highlighted by vecord fourth-quarter earnings per share, which increased over 16
percent from the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004,.

Our investment in key categories — such as fleece, paper crafting and needle arts — fueled sales growth
during the year. Total revenue increased 4.5 percent, and samce-store sales grew 3.2 percent in [iscal 2005 versus
2004, compared with a total revenue increase of 3.1 percent, and same-store sales growth of 3.6 percent in fiscal
2004, versus 2003, Fiscal 2005 represented the first year in the last four years where total revenues outpaced
same-store sales growth due to the resumption of new store growth. While our turnaround efforts dramatically
improved profits over the last three years, square footage has decreased due to store rationalization, and thus
top-line growth has been 100 percent dependent on growth from same stores. Beginning in fiseal 2005, and

accelerating going forward, square footage growth from niew stores is beginning to drive top-line performance.
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More importantly, however, we relined and
validated the fimancial model supporting the

superstore iormat...

We were able to drive substantial gross margin increases by refining our promotional pricing strategy and
continuing to reduce costs and enhance product assortment through our global sourcing initiatives. Our
gross margin rate increased 9o hasis points in fiscal 2005 to 47.6 percent, further building upon the 50 basis point
gross margin rate gain that we generated in fiscal 2004. We were pleased to deliver solid same-store sales growth
despite a reduced emphasis on promotional discounting over the course of the year.

Excluding stock-based compensation and debt repurchase costs, we generated a small improvement in
our operating margin rate as a percent of sales, driven by sales growth and gains in the gross margin rate. We
accomplished this despite higher expenses related to the acceleration of store openings. Store pre-opening and
closing costs totaled $18.5 million, or 1 percent of sales, a 39 percent increase from the $13.3 million in costs
we incurred in the previous year.

Even as we ramp up growth, we have continued our commitment to maintaining a strong balance sheet.
During the year, we completed our capital repositioning with a successful $100 million offering of 7.5 percent
senior subordinated notes. We also extended our existing bank facility by four years to 2009. In addition, we
strengthened our balance sheet, reducing our debt levels, net of cash, by approximately $77 million, to their lowest
level in seven years. Our business model generated strong cash flow, leaving $60 million in cash at year-end

compared with $17 million a year earlier, and lower debt levels of $100 million versus $114 million last year.

Our improved financial perfgrmance aside, éur primary objective in fiscal 2005 was to build a solid
foundation for future growth, and we believe we made significant strides. We accelerated our store expansion
program in fiscal 2005, opening 29 superstores compared with 16 in fiscal 2004 and three in fiscal 2003. At
the same time, we continued to streamline and refine our processes for store openings to gain efficiencies

and routinize the store closing and superstore opening process. We ended the year with 114 superstores,
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or approximately 13 percent of our store count, which together generated approximately one-third of our
revenues in fiscal 2003, Foreshadowing the future, the superstores accounted for approximately 37 percent
ol fourth-quarter revenue and generated same-store sales growth of 6 percent for the quarter, compared with
3.5 percent for our traditional stores.

Most importantly, we have dramatically improved the profitability of our existing superstores, improving
four-wall operating cash {low as a rate to sales by more than 360 basis points during fiscal 2005, Superstores now
gencrate more cash flow per square foot than our traditional stores, with superstores that have been open for atleast
ayear producing more than 20 percent higher cash flow per square foot than our traditional stores.

‘While we have been very confident of our smaller superstore model. we are extremely pleased that we are now
seeing tangible results demonstrating that the model works. Our first 14 prototype superstores — those thal have
been open for at least one year — collectively exceeded their firsi-year operating profit target rate to sales. This
impartant progress reinforces our confidence in our transformation strategy, which centers on a full-scale rollout
of superstores to drive growth over the long term. Our goal is to reach $3 billion in annual revenues within the next

five years, and we firmly believe that the superstore model will enable us to achieve this goal.
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January 29, January 31, February 1,
Fiscal Year Ended 2005 % 2004 2003
(Doltars in millions, except per share and store data) ’ (Restated) (Restated)
Net sales $ 1,812.4 $ 1,734.1 $ 1,682.0
Net income (loss) M@ @ $  46.2 $ 401 $ 454
Net income (loss) per common share ~ diluted @ @) $  2.02 $  1.82 $ 210
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted (000s) 22,887 22,003 21,632
Operating profit @@ © $ 87.9 $ 8L6 $ 980
QOperating profit percent to sales 4.8% 4.7% 5.8%
Inventories $  439.7 §  404.6 $ 3631
Total assets 839.3 719.8 714.3
Long-term debt 100.0 113.7 162.9
Shareholders’ equity 408.9 340.8 285.0
Number of stores in operation:
Traditional stores 737 806 847
Superstores 114 86 72
851 892 919
Total square footage (000s)
Traditional stores 10,721 11,646 12,165
Superstores 4,732 3,731 3,270
15,453 15,377 15,435
Number of employees 22,250 21,700 21,200

{1) Fiscal 2005 includes pre-tax charges of $7.7 miltion for stock-based compensation expense and $4.2 million for debt repurchase costs.

(2) Fistal 2004 includes pre-tax charges of $6.4 million for stock-based compensation expense, $1.2 miltion for share reclassification and

$4.3 million for debt repurchase costs.

{3) Fiscal 2003 includes a pre-tax charge of $1.9 million for debt repurchase costs.
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K Rapld growth demands that we have in plare The key systems, people and infrastructure necessary to support
that growth. Steady progress continues on that front.
Our constant emphasis on improving our core disciplines has, for example, resulted in improved in-stock
status in our stores. And the addition of a third distribution center in Opelika, Alabama, in early 2006 will further
improve service and bring additional efficiencies in our logistics network.

We are also mvestmgln leadershlp with our "Su perslore University.” an intensive trammg program to prcpare

superstore managers for the tremendous opportumnes and responmblhhes “ihatlie ahead,

Some important management appointments during the past year farther support our growth strategy. David
Holmberg joined us in Noveraber 2004, as executive vice president of store operations; Kevin Brown was appointed
serdor vice president, marketing in August 2004; and Gertrude Van Horn came aboard in February 2005 as senior
vice president and chief information officer. All of these outstanding executives bring strong pertinent experience

in the retail industry, and strengthen the rest of our core management team.
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As we close in on $2 bﬂhon in sales in fiscal 2006, we will continue to add and develop the necessary
infrastructure - inclhuding systems, real estate administration and human capital ~ to enable us to move rapidly to

sales of $3 billion. Accordingly, our strategic objectives for the 2006 fiscal year include:

&g Opening 40 superstores, further expanding the rollout of our 35,000 square foot prototype format
while continuing to fine-tune the superstore financial model and improve our store opening
efficiencies.

&9 Honing our marketing programs in order to drive incremental traffic in superstores while preserving
gross margins.

&9 Continuingto upgrade our employee training programs in order to develop future leaders to support
our growth,

59 Building our third distribution center to handle the increased volumes that will come with
rapid growth.

All of these initiatives require investments of time and capital to ensure that we are ready for a full-scale

superstore rollout. Although fiscal 2006 will be another year of transition, we believe we have the opportunity to
drive earnings growth this year. We believe we can accomplish this by continuing to leverage our core merchandise

categories and re-engineering our finished seasonal busincss. while enhancing guest service in our stores — all of
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which will optimize the customer shopping experience. However, gaining expense leverage in fiscal 2006 will be
difficult. primarily as a result of incremental pre-opening and closing cost expenses. Looking beyond fiscal 2006 as
we grow our square footage more rapidly, we believe we will begin to favorably leverage our expenses and have the
opportunity to drive meaningful operating margin improvement.

We are the number-one retailer in the sewing industry, with a current market share in the sewing segment
of our industry of approximately 20 to 25 percent. Our transformation to the superstore format will enable
us to gain market share in the craft market and grow our businesses even further as we become the leader in
creativity. The strong cash flow generation capacity of our business model allows us to self-fund growth in
the crafts market, where we believe we have tremendous potential to build upon our current market share of Jess
than 5 percent.

By offering a one-stop shopping resource for sewing and crafts, we not only appeal to our existing core
customer but provide a unique model that sets us apart from competitors that focus on just sewing or just crafts.
The superstores already open and the 40 we will open this year are just the beginning. We are early in the superstore
lifecycle and believe there is ultimate potential for more than 700 superstores in the top 200 or so markets in the
United States alone.

Clearly, the opportunities are significant. And we are confident thatwe are well positioned to take full advantage
of them for the benefit of our customers, our team members, ourvendors and, of course, our shareholders. We value
and thank all of you for your support and look forward to creating and sharing opportunities with you as we contirnue

to work toward ourvision of being the premier resource serving all those pursuing their creative dreams.

b il

Alan Rosskamm
Chairman of the Board.

President and Chiel Executive Officer

April 14. 2005




The Jo-Ann Stores customer knows how to celebrate all year long. And she visits us ofien to help put the "special”
in every event.

Whether it's to celebrate a specific occagion or simply to savor the satisfaction that comes from creating and
interacting with family and friends, she knows Jo-Ann is the place to go for ideas, inspiration and know-how. And we're
committed to being her premier resource as she pursues her creative dreams.

For generations, Jo-Ann built its well-recognized national brand name primarily on fabrics, sewing and other
traditional pursuits. Today's customer — who represents the full spectrum of generations, interests and lifestyles
—finds all of that and much more.

Our exciting new superstores present her with an astounding array of crafting, floral, decorating and seasonal
items, custom framing services and education programs — as well as fabries and notions. Our traditional stores,
meanwhile, have added the best of our craft, floral and home décor selections to their time-hounored fabric and
notions array.

Jo-Ann's Jeading market share in softlines such as sewing notions and fabrics not only serves the needs of
the sewing customer but also helps drive the profitability of our business. And our growing position in hardlines,
including craft components, framing, seasonal, floral and home décor items, appeals to
the many interests of the craft customer —who very often sews or knits, too ~while
fueling growth that offers attractive oppertunities for our team members, our
vendors and our shareholders.

Now, that's something to celebrate!
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1 Our customer doesn ™t like to keep things to herself. She’d much rather share her ereative passion and allow others
10 enjoy the results of her endeavors.

r Whatever her interesl or expertisc, in a Jo-Ann store she finds unique, new and exclasive products to make her

creative dreams come true. She also shares the camaraderie of team members who are likeminded in their love of

creative pastimes and eager to suggest, encourage and showhow.

1 In our superstores, she enjoys one-stop shopping on a scale unmatched in our industry — featuring a
comprehensive lineup of sewing, crafting. floral and home decorating products representing the leading brands and a

) growing selection of private-label offerings. From the specially themed focal points that dominate the four corners of

the store to the cutting table and everywhere in betwoen, she finds what she came infor —and, chances are. something

! to spark a new idea or interest,

‘ Monthly quilting block partics, scrapbooking socials and free Creative Kids events. as well as prom and bridal

1/ clinies, curriculum-based Summer Kids' Camps and family-oriented events throughout the year, also offer

chances to share time and interests. Or perhaps shell learn a new skill through
- (reative University”, offered in most of our superstores. Popular classes

include sewing, heading and jewelry. Wilton® cake decorating, knitting.

£

One Stroke® painting, crocheting. quilting and scrapbooking.

. tomention justa few.
’ Behind the scenes. our vendor management
" organization nurtures mumally heneficial relalionships
with our merchandise vendor partners that enhance
the customer experience. By sharing industry and
~  consumer insights, simplifving processes
and enhancing service, together we maximize
the effeciiveness of the product mix.
improve in-stocks and shape product
presentation for the utmost appeal.
Helping others to enjoy their passion

personifies the spirit of sharing.
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With every craft she creates and cach stitch she sews. our customer gains a sense of satigfaction and personal growlh
of her own making.
\ Likewise with every superstore we open, we gain the satisfaction of knowing our momentum is making us the
‘ destination for ereative expression. We are in the early stages of an exciting growth era for Jo-Ann Stores, and we don't plan
| to grow alone.
| ‘The demonstrated profitability and retorn on our investment in the compelling 35.000 square foot prototype
| reaffirms our confidence in the format we believe is Jo-Ann's future. We envision a company that can grow to more than 700
! superstoves serving major markets across the country. Our valued vendors are iraportant partners in {illing these stores w ith
everything our castomer is looking for and more.
As we grow, it is necessary and we are deeply committed to growing
our management bench strength, training and prometing from within.

Superstore Universily. To-Ann's largest and most comprehensive training

investment ever, reflects that commitment and supports our growth
strategy. The structured training program prepares leaders to effec-
tively manage the different businesses within a superstore, achieve

operational and financial goals and better serve our customers.
And on the front lines, our customer-focased, results-oriented
team members provide the personal touches that are vital to
the customer expericnce. Their creative spirit and continued

dedication will help us carry out our vision.
Onr traditional stores. which still aceount for approximately
two-thirds our revenues, remain strong linancially and represent
the Jo-Ann brand well in many markels. As we accelerate
the superstore rollont market by market. we expect to open
approximately 100 supcrstores over the next Lwo years alone.
We find that superstores typically average more than three
times the revenucs of the stores they replace.

- With peformance-related closings of traditional stores
largely behind us, overall net square fuotage will once again begin to

rice. Going forward, we anticipate that the larger size and higher sales per square foot at
p 8 g persqu

| the superstores will drive revenue growth at arate shead of the increase in net square footage. This will N
P gr qu g //
! . - o . . N . -
N create opportunities for higher returus [or shareholders who invest in what we are confident willbe astrong future. = -
. - P //\j N
o aayd






LEFT T0 RIGHT:

Beryl Raff, Frank Newmar:, Patricia Morrison, Tracey Thomas Travis, Alan Rosskamm, Tra Gumberg, Scott Cowen, Gregg Searle

@ZWMV%?// 4
/ W:{//VV

R
&Y

ehostopreBeen

Vice President

Merchandise Planning

Senior Vice President
Marketing

Regional Vice President

Ohio and Pennsylvania Region
Vice President

Internal Audit and Loss Prevention
fninooyissingen

Senior Vice President

Supply Chain Management:
and Logistics

I

Chairman of the Board,

President and Chief Executive Officer
[Bavidleclen

Executive Vice President
Merchandising, Marketing and Logistics

Vice President

General Merchandise Manager,
Home Decor

Vice President

Real Estate

Vice President

Organizational Effectiveness
pottylGrexd]

Vice President

General Merchandise Manager,
Fabric

Vice President

Human Resources

D
Regional Vice President
Northeast Region

Regional Vice President
California Region
[Beckilon
Vice President

General Merchandise Manager,
Craft and Notions

Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer
Executive Vice President
General Counsel and Secretary

laelfaram]

Vice President

Service Businesses

Vice President

Controller

[Kevinkareesiang

Regionat Vice President
Northwest Region

Rk el

Vice President

Merchandise Information Officer
Vice President

Store Transformation and Planning
Regional Vice President
Southwest Region

Senior Vice President

Directar Emeritiss

Vice President

Field Human Resources

Chairman of the Board,

President and Chief Executive Officer
BcotiEowenie

President

Tulane University

President and Chief Executive Officer
J.J. Gumberg Company

el B Yoo

Executive Vice President of
Information Technology and

‘Chief Information” Officér

Office Depot, to Aprit 2005
Tl Nawma ¥

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Medical Nutrition, Inc,

Sl R

Senior Vice President,

General Merchandise Manager
Retail Jewelry Division

J.C. Penney Company, Inc.

Chief Executive Officer

Ross Envirenmental Services, Inc.
e Themas Tevs

Sentor Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Polo Ralph Lauren

1 Member of the Audit Committee
2 Member of the Carporate Governance Committee
3 Member of the Compensation Commitiee

Executive Vice President
Store Operations
Executive Vice President
Human Resources

Regional Vice President
Southeast Region
Donald TemeF?

Vice President

Finance and Treasurer
[GegtnideRvangiion)
Senior Vice President and
Chief Information Qfficer
S Vel

Vice President

Store Operations and
Superstore Development
Regional Vice President
Midwest Region

Vice President
Advertising

Taomas Wiams

Vice President

Human Resources Services
Almapzimmesan)
Senior Vice President
Director Emeritus




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT of 1934

For the fiscal year-ended January 29, 2005

Commission File No. 1-6695

JO-ANN STORES, INC.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

AN )¢ /f’C/\‘\)‘
Ohio 34-0720629 >
(State or other jurisdiction of (L.R.S. Employer Idgntification No.)
incorporation or organization)
5555 Darrow Road, Hudson, Ohio 44236
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (330) 656-2600
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Name of Each Exchange
Title of Class on Which Registered

Common Stock, Without Par Value New York Stock Exchange

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period
that the registrant was required to file such reports) and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for
the past 90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment of this
Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act). Yes No O

The aggregate market value of the common stock of the registrant held by non-affiliates of the registrant
as of July 31, 2004 was $508.0 million, based upon the closing sales price of the registrant’s common stock
on that date as reported on the New York Stock Exchange. All executive officers and directors of the
registrant have been deemed, solely for the purpose of the foregoing calculation, to be “affiliates” of the
registrant.

The number of common shares cutstanding, as of April 1, 2005, of the registrant’s Common Stock was
23,010,927.

Documents incorporated by reference: Portions of the following documents are incorporated by reference:
Proxy Statement for 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders — Items 10, 11, 12 and 14 of Part III.







PART I

Except as otherwise stated, the information contained in this report is given as of January 29, 2005, the
end of our latest fiscal year. The words “Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.,” “Jo-Ann Stores,” “Jo-Ann Fabrics and Crafts,”
“Jo-Ann etc,” “Registrant,” “Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. and, unless the
context requires otherwise, to our subsidiaries. Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. is an Ohio corporation, founded in 1943.
Our fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to January 31 and refers to the year in which the period ends
(e.g., fiscal 2005 refers to the period ended January 29, 2005).
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Item 1. Business

We are the nation’s largest specialty retailer of fabrics and one of the largest specialty retailers of crafts,
serving customers in their pursuit of apparel and craft sewing, crafting, home decorating and other creative
endeavors. We have a well-established, national brand name. Our retail stores (operating as Jo-Ann Fabrics
and Crafts traditional stores and Jo-Ann superstores) feature a variety of competitively priced merchandise
used in sewing, crafting and home decorating projects, including fabrics, notions, crafts, frames, scrapbooking
material, artificial and dried flowers, home accents, finished seasonal and home décor merchandise.

As of January 29, 2005, we operated 851 stores in 47 states (737 traditional stores and
114 superstores). Our traditional stores offer a complete selection of fabrics and notions and a convenience
assortment of crafts, floral, finished seasonal and home décor merchandise. Our traditional stores average
approximately 14,500 square feet and generated net sales per store of approximately $1.6 million in fiscal
2005. Our superstores offer an expanded and more comprehensive product assortment than our traditional
stores. Our superstores also offer custom framing, floral arrangement and educational programs that our
traditional stores do not. Our larger superstores, that were opened prior to fiscal 2003, average approximately
45,000 square feet and generated net sales per store of approximately $6.3 million in fiscal 2005. Qur current
superstore prototype averages 35,000 square feet and targets sales of $5.25 million in its first year of
operation. We opened 29 of these new prototype superstores in fiscal 2005 and we currently have 43 of the
prototype superstores in operation at January 29, 2005. Fourteen of the prototype superstores have been
open at least one year and averaged $5.0 million in net sales for their first year of operation.

We believe stability in our business and our industry is partially a function of recession-resistant
characteristics. For example, according to a 2002 research study conducted by the Hobby Industry
Association, approximately 60 percent of all U.S. households participated in crafts and hobbies in 2002. While
expenditures for such projects are generally discretionary in nature, our average sales ticket during fiscal 2005
was relatively low at $23 in our superstores and $17 in our traditional stores. Industry sales, according to the
Hobby Industry Association’s research study, were approximately $29 billion, a 13 percent increase from
$25.7 billion in 2001. Our market is highly fragmented and is served by multi-store fabric retailers, arts and
crafts retailers, mass merchandisers, small local specialty retailers, mail order vendors and a variety of other
retailers.

We provide a solution-oriented shopping experience with employees who are encouraged to assist
customers in creating and completing creative projects. Many of our store level employees are sewing and/or
crafting enthusiasts, which we believe enables them to provide exceptional customer service. We believe our
focus on service contributes to a high proportion of repeat business from our customers. A significant portion
of our advertising budget is allocated to our direct mail program targeting more than three million of our
preferred customers on a regular basis.

We believe that our superstores are uniquely designed to offer a destination location for our customers.
We offer over 80,000 SKUs across three broad product categories in our superstores: sewing, crafting and
home decorating components. We manage our vast product selection with SAP Retail, which was implemented
in fiscal 2001. Through the core SAP application and integration with peripheral processing systems, we
continue to drive operational and execution improvements, to review and enhance forecasting and
replenishment capabilities, and to streamline operations. From fiscal 2001 through fiscal 2005, our inventory
turns have increased from 1.8 to 2.3 times. Qur concerted focus on continuous improvement and on key
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metrics continues to yield results, including improved grand-opening results, better in-stock positions and
improved visibility throughout our supply chain.

Business Strategy

We intend to improve our operating performance by opening additional superstores, growing same-store
sales and improving operating margins and inventory productivity. Key elements of this business strategy are:

Open Additional Superstores.  Roll out our refined superstore format across the nation. Our research has
demonstrated that our customers have a better perception of the quality and pricing of our products when
they are presented in our superstore format. We believe that our prototype 35,000 square foot superstore
gives us a competitive advantage in the industry. Our superstores provide a unique shopping experience by
offering a full creative selection — sewing, crafting, floral, framing, seasonal and home décor accessories —
all under one roof. On average, we close 1.1 traditional stores for each superstore that we open. Our
superstores average over three times the revenues of the traditional stores they replace. In markets where we
have opened multiple superstores, we have been able to grow our revenues significantly and, we believe,
expanded the market size and our share of market. For example, in Phoenix, Arizona, we have replaced eight
of the 15 traditional stores in that market with four superstores over the last seven years, and we have
increased our revenues in that market from $13 million to $39 million. We believe we have an opportunity to
replace the remaining traditional stores in that market with superstores and further grow our revenues. We
believe we have an opportunity to replicate our performance in Phoenix in the top 100 to 125 markets across
the nation. As of January 29, 2005, we operated 114 superstores in 23 states.

Grow Same-Store Sales. Both our traditional stores and superstores present opportunities to improve
same-store sales. Our focus in this effort is on improving in-stocks, customer service and merchandise-driven
initiatives. We primarily market via direct mail, although in superstore markets we use an integrated direct
and mass marketing program. We believe that we can more efficiently and effectively drive repeat business by
fine-tuning our direct mail and newspaper insert promotions. We frequently update the category merchandise
offerings in our stores to keep our product offering fresh and compelling to our customers. Our focus is on
placing key items at compelling prices on our end-cap displays. Because many of our store team members are
sewing and crafting enthusiasts themselves, we also helieve we can drive increased sales by providing
knowledgeable customer service and assistance.

Improve Margins. We believe we have the ability to improve margins by further reducing our level of
clearance inventory and continuing to focus on our promotional activity, a strategy we successfully executed
in fiscal 2005 and 2004, through the use of less aggressive coupons and tighter seasonal purchase
commitments. We believe we can also improve margins by refining our supply chain management and
merchandising in our stores, We continually examine our partnerships with our vendors to improve supply
chain efficiency. We also continue to explore new product sourcing opportunities. We continuously monitor
store performance to optimize our store portfolio. Of stores that have been open at least one year, we have
only three stores that are not cash flow positive on a four-wall bass.

Improve Inventory Productivity. Our enterprise-wide inventory management system enables us to
improve our product mix on an ongoing basis. Our SAP Retail merchandising systems have been in operation
since March 2000, and we have been operating since July 2001 on our current automated replenishment
systems. We believe we have further opportunities to improve the accuracy of our perpetual inventories,
perfect our merchandise and assortment planning tools and develop more sophisticated sales forecasting tools
in order to replenish goods in our 'stores more efficiently and effectively.




Product Selection

The following table shows our net sales by principal product line as a percentage of total net sales:

Fiscal Year-Ended
January 29, January 31, February 1,

2005 2004 2003
Principal product line:
Softlines. ... ... 56% 57% 57%
Hardlines and seasonal .............................. _44% _43% _43%
Total ..o 100% 100% 100%

Softlines

We offer a broad and comprehensive assortment of fabrics in both our traditional and superstore formats.
These fabrics are merchandised by end use and are sourced from throughout the world to offer our customers
a combination of unique design, fashion forward trends, and value. Our stores are organized in the following
categories for the convenience of the sewer:

* fashion and sportswear fabrics, used primarily in the construction of garments for the customer
seeking a unique, fashion forward look;

* special occasion fabrics used to construct evening wear, bridal and special occasion outfits;

* craft fabrics, used primarily in the construction of quilts, craft and seasonal projects for the home;
* juvenile designs for the construction of garments as well as blankets and décor accessories;

* special-buy or fabrics representing extreme values for our customer;

* home decorating fabrics and accessories used in home related projects such as window treatments,
furniture and bed coverings (in addition to the in-store assortment, we offer a special order capability
for additional designs);

* a wide array of notions, which represent items incidental to sewing-related projects — including
cutting implements, threads, zippers, trims, tapes, pins, elastics, buttons and ribbons as well as the
patterns necessary for most sewing projects; and

» sewing-related accessories including lighting, organizers, and sewing machines. Our high volume stores
offer a wider selection of sewing machines through leased departments with third parties from whom
we receive sublease income.

Hardlines and Seasonal

We offer a broad assortment of hardlines merchandise for the creative enthusiast. Our superstores offer
the complete array of categories while our traditional stores, due to their smaller size, carry edited or
convenience assortments. We offer the following hardline selections in our superstores:

» yarn and accessories as well as needlecraft kits and supplies;

* paper crafting components, such as albums, papers, stickers, stamps, and books used in the popular
home based activities of scrapbooking and card making;

* craft materials, including items used for stenciling, jewelry making, decorative painting, wall décor,
and kids crafting;

* brand-name fine art materials, including items such as pastels, water colors, oil paints, acrylics,
easels, brushes, paper and canvas;

* a comprehensive assortment of books and magazines to provide inspiration for our customer;
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 framed art, photo albums and ready-made frames and, in superstores, full service in-store framing
departments;

e floral products, including artificial flowers, dried flowers and artificial plants, sold separately or in
ready-made and custom floral arrangements and a broad selection of accessories essential for floral
arranging and wreath making; and

« home décor accessories including baskets, candles and accent collections designed to complement our
home décor fashions.

In addition to the basic categories described above, our stores regularly feature seasonal products, which
complement our core merchandising strategy. Our seasonal offering spans all product lines and includes
finished decorations, gifts and accessories that focus on holidays including Easter, Halloween and Christmas,
as well as seasonal categories such as patio/garden. We own several private label seasonal brands including
the “Cottontale Collection™,” “Spooky Hollow®,” “Santa’s Workbench®,” and “Garden Gate Designs™.”

During the Christmas selling season, a significant portion of floor and shelf space is devoted to seasonal
crafts, decorating and gift-making merchandise. Due to the project-oriented nature of these items, our peak
selling season extends longer than that of other retailers and generally runs from September through
December. In fiscal 2005, approximately 33 percent of our net sales and over 60 percent of our operating
profits were generated in the fourth quarter.

During fiscal 2005, 43 percent of superstore net sales were derived from softlines and 57 percent from
hardlines. For our traditional stores, 62 percent of net sales were derived from softlines and 38 percent from
hardlines during fiscal 2005.

Marketing

Our marketing efforts are key to the on'going success and growth of our stores. Our primary focus is on
acquiring and retaining customers through an integrated direct and mass marketing program.

We use our proprietary customer database to provide ongoing communication to our most frequent
customers through a robust direct mail program. This allows us to cost efficiently and effectively reach our
target market on a regular basis throughout the year. To drive customer acquisition, we supplement our direct
mail advertising with newspaper insert advertising, primarily in superstore markets. Our direct mait and
newspaper inserts showcase our exciting sales events, feature numerous products offered at competitive prices
and broadcast the wide selection of merchandise available in our stores.

As we market the Jo-Ann Stores concept, we also focus on developing long-term relationships with our
customers. These efforts include providing knowledge and inspiration through in-store classes, demonstrations
and project sheets. This inspiration is reinforced in our quarterly Jo-Ann magazine, sold in our stores and
other outlets.

Our grand opening program plays an integral role in the successful opening of each new superstore. We
utilize our existing customer base to build awareness and excitement in each market around the opening of
each new store. This is paired with newspaper inserts and popular in-store promotions during grand opening
weekend to drive customer traffic. We continue to drive customer awareness and traffic after the grand
opening through ongoing advertising efforts in the market.

We also reach our customers through our relationship with IdeaForest, operator of joann.com, an on-line
retailer of sewing and crafting merchandise, creative ideas, advice and suppties. We hold a minority
investment in IdeaForest, which functions as an independent entity. In this relationship, we advise on
product trends and make product available to IdeaForest, while technology support, customer fulfillment and
service are handled by IdeaForest.

Overall, our direct, mass, grand opening, in-store and on-line marketing efforts are focused on meeting
our customers’ desires and building our brand image as we reposition our stores.
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Purchasing

We have numerous domestic and international sources of supply available for each category of product
that we sell. During fiscal 2005, approximately 70 percent of our purchases were sourced domestically and
30 percent were sourced internationally. Although we have no long-term purchase commitments with any of
our suppliers, we strive to maintain continuity with them. All purchases are centralized through our store
support center, allowing store team leaders and store team members to focus on customer sales and service
and enabling us to negotiate volume discounts, control product mix and ensure quality. Currently, none of our
suppliers represent more than three percent of our annual purchase volume and the top ten suppliers
represent less than 20 percent of our total annual purchase volume. We currently utilize approximately 1,000
merchandise suppliers, with the top 200 representing more than 80 percent of our purchasing volume.

Logistics

At the end of fiscal 2005, we operated two owned distribution centers which ship merchandise to all of
our stores on a weekly basis. We will break ground for our third distribution center during April 2005. This
facility will be located in Opelika, Alabama, to support our existing stores and future growth in key
southeastern states. Based on purchase dollars, approximately 84 percent of the products in our stores are
shipped through our distribution center network, with the remaining 16 percent of our purchases shipped
directly from our suppliers to our stores. Our primary distribution center facility is located in Hudson, Ohio
and supplies product to approximately two-thirds of our store base and our Visalia, California distribution
center services the remaining one-third of our store base.

We transport product from our distribution centers to our stores utilizing contract carriers. Merchandise is
shipped directly from our distribution centers to our stores using dedicated core carriers for approximately
90 percent of our store base. For the remainder of our chain, we transport product to the stores using less
than truckload carriers or through three regional “hubs” where it is cross-docked for local delivery. We do not
own either the regional hubs or the local delivery vehicles.

Store Operations

Site Selection. We believe that our store locations are integral to our success. New sites are selected
through a coordinated effort of our real estate, finance and operations management teams. In evaluating the
desirability of a potential store site, we consider both market demographics and site-specific criteria. Market
criteria that we consider important include our traditional stores performance in that immediate market,
distance to other Jo-Ann store locations, as well as total population, number of households, median
household income, percentage of home ownership versus rental, and historical and projected population
growth over a ten-year period. Site-specific criteria that we consider important include rental terms, the store
location position and visibility within the shopping center, size of the shopping center, co-tenants, proximity
to highway access, traffic patterns, availability of convenient parking and ease of entry from the major
roadways framing the strip location.

Our expansion strategy is to give priority to adding stores in existing superstore markets in order to
create economies of scale associated with advertising, distribution, field supervision, and other regional
expenses. We believe that there are attractive opportunities in most of our existing markets and in numerous
new markets.

Costs of Opening Stores. Standard operating procedures are employed to efficiently open new stores and
integrate them into our information management and distribution systems. We have developed a standardized
floor plan, inventory layout, and marketing program for each store we open. We typically open stores during
the period from February through October to maximize sales, and minimize disruption to store operations,
during our fourth-quarter peak selling season.

Store Management. Traditional stores generally have four full-time team members and 15 to 25 part-
time team members, while superstores typically have approximately 10 full-time team members and 35 to
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45 part-time team members, Store team leaders are compensated with a base salary plus a bonus, which is
tied to quarterly store sales, annual store controllable profit and annual store shrink rates.

Traditional store team leaders are typically promoted from a group of top performing assistant managers,
some of whom started as our customers. This continuity serves to solidify long-standing relationships between

our stores and our customers. When a traditional store is closed due to the opening of a superstore, we

generally retain its team members to staff the new superstore. Superstore team leaders have primarily been
staffed with individuals from outside the Company who have previous experience in managing “big-box” retail
concepts. During the past year, the Company implemented “Superstore University,” designed to develop and

prepare more superstore managers from within our organization. This comprehensive training program is
currently training the first two classes of trainees for superstores opening in fiscal 2006. We believe that
developing more of our futtire managers from within the organization is essential to our superstore growth

strategy. Each store is under the supervision of a district team leader who reports to a regional vice

president.

Stores

The fotlowing table shows our stores by type and state at January 29, 2005:

Traditional
Alabama ............ 1
Alaska .............. 6
Arizona ............. 10
Arkansas ............ 1
California ........... 88
Colorado ............ 9
Connecticut.......... 13
Delaware ............ 2
Florida.............. 44
Georgia ............. 8
Idaho............... 9
Illinois ............. 37
Indiama ............. 26
Towa ............... 11
Kansas.............. 6
Kentucky ............ 4
Louisiana............ 7
Maine .............. 5
Maryland . ........... 16
Massachusetts........ 24
Michigan ............ 39
Minnesota ........... 16
Missouri ............ 12
Montana ............ 7

Superstore

N

oo

Total

1
6
15
1
95
12
15
3
53
12
9
42
29
11

Nebraska ............
Nevada .............
New Hampshire... .. ..
New Jersey ..........
New Mexico..........
New York . ...........
North Carolina .......
North Dakota ........

Ohio

Oklahoma ...........
Oregon .............
Pennsylvania.........
Rhode Island.........
South Carolina .......
South Dakota ........

Vermont.............
Virginia .............
Washington..........
West Virginia ........
Wisconsin ...........

Traditional

737

Superstore

Total

5
6
8
13
6
44
7

64
4
25
49
1

44
11

22
33

20
851




The following table reflects the number of stores opened, expanded or relocated and closed during each
of the past five fiscal years (square footage in thousands):

Stores in Total
Fiscal Stores Stores Operation at Expanded Square
Year Opened Closed Year-End or Relocated Footage
2001 18 (37) 1,007 9 16,068
2002 12 (60) 959 10 15,897
2003 3 (43) 919 6 15,435
2004 19 (46) 892 — 15,377
2005 31 (72) 851 2 15,453

Our new store opening costs depend on the building type, store size and general cost levels in the
geographical area. During fiscal 2005, we opened 29 superstores, all of which represented our 35,000 square
foot prototype. Our average net investment in a superstore is $2.0 million, which includes leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, inventory (net of payable support) and pre-opening
expenses. Also during fiscal 2005, we opened two traditional stores, with an average square footage of
approximately 23,000 square feet. Our average net opening cost of a traditional store is $1.2 million, which
includes leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, inventory (net of payable support) and
pre-opening expenses.

During fiscal 2006, we expect to open approximately 40 new superstores and five traditional stores and
close approximately 50 to 55 traditional stores, most of which are related to the superstore openings. We
have committed to substantially all the leases for our fiscal 2006 planned openings.

Information Technology

Qur point-of-sale register transactions are polled nightly and our point-of-sale system interfaces with
both our financial and merchandising systems. We utilize point-of-sale registers and scanning devices to
record the sale of product at a stock-keeping units (“SKU”) level at our stores. We also utilize handheld radio
frequency devices for a variety of store tasks including price look-up, perpetual inventory exception counting,
merchandise receiving, vendor returns and fabric sales processing. In the last several years, we have installed
broadband communication and new store controllers in all of our stores, resulting in a greatly enhanced
customer checkout experience and a better platform to further automate internal store communications.
During fiscal 2006, we will continue to upgrade the store’s technology, beginning with our superstores, by
replacing handheld units, registers and radio frequency devices. We believe these upgrades will enable us to
provide higher levels of customer and associate satisfaction, while providing a platform that we can build on
and leverage over the coming years.

Information obtained from item-level scanning through our point-of-sale system enables us to identify
important trends to increase in-stock levels of more popular SKUs, eliminate less profitable SKUs, analyze
product margins and generate data for advertising cost/benefit evaluations. We also believe that our point-of-
sale system allows us to provide better customer service by increasing the speed and accuracy of register
checkout, enabling us to more rapidly re-stock merchandise and efficiently re-price sale items.

The Company operates on SAP Retail. The completion of the retail portion of this project in fiscal 2001
merged all of our financial, merchandise and retail systems and linked business processes on a single software
platform. In-stock positions and inventery turns have significantly improved, primarily driven by our auto-
replenishment and improved inventory management capabilities. In the spring of 2004, we upgraded our SAP
application and continue to see additional operational efficiencies and further opportunities as a result of the
integrated platform.




Status of Product or Line of Business

During fiscal 2005, there was no pubtic announcement nor is there a public announcement anticipated,
about either a new product line or line of business involving the investment of a material portion of our
assets. ) R

Trademarks

We do business under the federally registered trademark “Jo-Ann Fabrics and Crafts” and we also own
several trademarks relating to our private label products. We believe that our trademarks are significant to our
business.

Seasonal Business

Our business exhibits seasonatity which is typical for most retail companies, with much stronger sales in
the second half of the year than in the first half of the year. Net earnings are highest during the months of
September through December when sales volumes provide significant operating leverage. In fiscal 2005,
approximately 33 percent of our net sales and over 60 percent of our aperating profit were generated in the
fourth quarter. Borrowing requirements needed to finance our operations fluctuate during the year and reach
their highest levels in the third fiscal quarter as we increase our inventory in preparation for our peak selling
season.

Customer Base

We are engaged in the retail sale of merchandise to the general public and, accordingly, no part of our
business is dependent upon a single customer or a few customers. During fiscal 2005 no single store
accounted for more than one percent of total net sales.

Backlog of Orders

We sell merchandise to the general public on a cash and carry basis and, accordingly, we have no
significant backlog of orders.

Competitive Conditions

We are the nation’s largest specialty retailer of fabrics and one of the largest specialty retailers of crafts,
serving customers in their pursuit of apparel and craft sewing, crafting, home decorating and other creative
endeavors. Our stores compete with other specialty fabric and craft retailers and selected mass merchants,
including Wal-Mart, that dedicate a portion of their selling space to a limited selection of fabrics and craft
supply items. We compete on the basis of product assortment, price, convenience and customer service. We
believe the combination of our product assortment, outstanding sales events and knowledgeable, customer
focused team members provide us with a competitive advantage.

There are two public companies that we compete with nationally in the fabric and craft specialty retail
industry, one in the fabric segment (Hancock Fabrics, Inc, — 447 stores and $427 million in revenues) and
one in the craft segment (Michaels Stores, Inc. — 1,021 stores and $3.4 billion in revenues). There is also a
public company competitor in the craft segment (A.C. Moore, Arts & Crafts, Inc.) that is a rapidly growing
regional operator of 96 stores and $498 million in revenues. The balance of our competition is comprised of
regional and local operators, We believe that there are only three or four other competitors, in addition to
those described above, with fabric or craft sales exceeding $100 million annually. We believe that we have
several advantages over most of our smaller competitors, including:

¢ purchasing power;
* ability to support efficient nationwide distribution; and

« the financial resources to execute our strategy and capital investment needs going forward.
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Research and Development

During the three fiscal years ended January 29, 2005, we have not incurred any material expense on
research activities relating to the development of new products or services or the improvement of existing
products or services.

Environmental Disclosure

We are not engaged in manufacturing. Accordingly, we do not believe that compliance with federal, state
and local provisions regulating the discharge of material into the environment or otherwise relating to the
protection of the environment will have a material adverse effect upon our capital expenditures, income or
competitive position.

Employees

As of January 29, 2005, we had approximately 22,250 full and part-time employees, of whom 20,650
worked in our stores, 400 were employed in our Hudson distribution center, 250 were employed in our Visalia
distribution center and 950 were employed at our store support center in Hudson. The number of part-time
employees is substantially higher during our peak selling season. We believe our employee turnover is below
average for retailers primarily because our stores often are staffed with sewing and crafting enthusiasts. In
addition, we provide an attractive work environment, employee discounts, flexible hours and competitive
compensation packages within the local labor markets. Our ability to offer flexible scheduling is important in
attracting and retaining these employees since approximately 75 percent of our employees work part-time.

The United Steelworkers of America, Upholstery and Allied Industries Division currently represents
employees who work in our Hudson, Ohio distribution center. Our current contract expires on May 5, 2007. We
believe that our relations with our employees and the union are good.

Foreign Operations and Export Sales

In fiscal 2005, we purchased approximately 30 percent of our products directly from manufacturers
located in foreign countries. These foreign suppliers are located primarily in China and other Asian countries.
In addition, many of our domestic suppliers purchase a portion of their products from foreign suppliers.
Because a large percentage of our products are manufactured or sourced abroad, we are required to order
these products further in advance than would be the case if the products were manufactured domestically. If
we underestimate consumer demand, we may not be able to fully satisfy our customers on a timely basis. If
we overestimate consumer demand, we may be required to hold goods in inventory for a longer period of time
or to reduce selling prices in order to clear excess inventory at the end of a selling season. We do not have
long-term contracts with any manufacturers.

Foreign manufacturing is also subject to a number of other risks, including work stoppages,
transportation delays and interruptions, political instability, economic disruptions, including raw material and
energy shortages, the imposition of tariffs and import and export controls, changes in governmental policies
and other events. If any of these events occur, it could result in a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects. In addition, reductions in the value of the U.S. dollar
could ultimately increase the prices that we pay for our products. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Comparison of the 52 Weeks Ended January 29, 2005 and
January 31, 2004."

Other Available Information

We also make available, free of charge, on our website at www.joann.com, our annual reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as we file such
material, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. We have posted on our website the
charters of our Audit, Compensation and Corporate Governance Committees; our Corporate Governance

9




Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (including the Code of Ethics for the CEOQ and Financial
Officers), and any amendments or waivers thereto. These documents are also available in print to any person
requesting a copy from our Investor Relations department at our principal executive offices.

As required by Section 303A.12 of the Listed Company Manual of the New York Stock Exchange (the
“NYSE"), our chief executive officer submitted to the NYSE his annual certification on June 18, 2004 stating
that he was not aware of any violation by our Company of the corporate governance listing standards of the
NYSE. In addition, we have filed, as exhibits to this annual report on Form 10-K for the year-ended
January 29, 2005, the certifications of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer required under
Sections 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Item 2. Properties

Our store support center and Hudson distribution center are located in a 1.4 million square foot facility
on 105 acres in Hudson, Ohio. We own both the facility and the real estate. The distribution center occupies
1.0 million square feet and the remainder is used as our store support center, a superstore, and office space
we lease to another tenant. In addition, we own 65 acres of land adjacent to our Hudson, Ohio facility.

We also operate a 630,000 square foot distribution center tocated on an 80-acre site in Visalia,
Catifornia. We own both the facility and the real estate.

On January 13, 2005, we announced the commitment to construct our third distribution center, to be
located in Opelika, Alabama, We have a ground tease on 105 acres of land to construct this facility.

The remaining properties that we occupy are leased retail store facilities, located primarily in high-traffic
shopping centers. All store leases are operating leases. Traditional store leases generally have initial terms of
five to ten years and renewal options for up to 20 years. Superstore leases generally have initial terms of 10
to 15 years and renewal options generally ranging from 10 to 20 years. Certain store leases contain escalation
clauses and contingent rents based on a percent of net sales in excess of defined minimums. During the fiscal
- year-ended January 29, 2005, we incurred $151.4 million of rental expense, including common area
maintenance, taxes and insurance for store locations. As we pursue our transformation plan to replace
traditional stores with superstores over time, we have been able to build flexibility by reducing the
outstanding term of existing traditional store teases through splitting of renewal options or negotiating short-
term renewals. Despite closing almost 260 stores over the last five years, we presently are only paying rent
on eight closed store locations where we have been unable to reach an early lease termination settlement
with the landlord or sublease the property.

As of January 29, 2005, the current terms of our store leases, assuming we exercise all {ease renewal
options, were as follows:

Number of

Year Lease Terms Expire Store Leases
Month-to-month . ..o 34
20008 51
2007 L e 36
2008 e 32
2000 L e 23
2000 L e 13
Thereafter .. 661
Total . e 850
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in various litigation matters in the ordinary course of our business. We are not currently
involved in any litigation which we expect, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of shareholders during the fourth quarter.

Executive Officers of the Registrant
The following information is set forth pursuant to Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K.

Our executive officers are as follows:

Name Age Position

Alan Rosskamm ........... . ... . ... 55 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer

Dave Bolen.......... ... i, 53 Executive Vice President, Merchandising and
Marketing

Brian Carney. . ... 44 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

Valerie Gentile Sachs ..................... ... 49 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary

David Holmberg ........... ... . o L. 46 Executive Vice President, Operations

Rosalind Thompson ......................... 55 Executive Vice President, Human Resources

Alan Rosskamm has been Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of our Company for
more than five years. He is a member of one of the two founding families of our Company and has been
employed by us since 1978. Mr. Rosskamm is also a Director of Charming Shoppes Inc., a women's apparel
retailer.

Dave Bolen has bheen Executive Vice President, Merchandising and Marketing of our Company since March
2001. He was Executive Vice President, Stores and Business Development from August 1997 to March 2001
and Senior Vice President, General Manager of Jo-Ann etc from March 1997 to August 1997. Prior to joining
our Company, he was Executive Vice President-Operations of Michaels Stores, Inc., a national craft retailer,
from July 1994 to August 1996.

Brian Carney has been Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer of our Company for more than five
years. Prior to joining our Company, he was Senior Vice President-Finance of Revco D.S., Inc., a retail
drugstore chain (acquired by CVS Corporation in 1997).

Valerie Gentile Sachs has been Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of our Company
since January 2003. Prior to joining our Company, she was the General Counsel of Marconi plc, of London,
England, a global company serving the communications industry, from March 2002. Previously she was
Executive Vice President and General Counsel from April 2001 to March 2002, and Vice President and General
Counsel from November 2000 to April 2001 of Marconi Communications, Inc., the operating company for
Marconi in the Americas. From December 1997 to November 2000, she was Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary for RELTEC Corporation, a network equipment and network services provider. RELTEC Corporation
went public in March 1998 and was acquired by Marconi in April 1999.

David Holmberg has been Executive Vice President, Operations of our Company since November 28, 2004.
Prior to joining our Company, he was President of Cole License Businesses of Cole National Corporation, a
retailer of eyewear and optometry services, from April 2001 to October 2004. Prior to that, he spent seven
years with Zale Corporation, a specialty retailer of fine jewelry, advancing to President of Zale Canada Co. in
May 1999,
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Rosalind Thompson has been Executive Vice President, Human Resources of our Company since December
1999. She was previously Senior Vice President, Human Resources from March 1992 to December 1999.

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

The Company’s common shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “JAS.”
As of April 1, 2005, there were 855 common shareholders of record. The closing price of the shares on
April 1, 2005 was $27.06.

On November 4, 2003, the Company announced that shareholders approved the reclassification of its
Class A and Class B common shares into a single class of stock. All references to the number of shares of
Common Stock, stock options, per share prices, and earnings per share amounts in the “Selected Financial
Data,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” the
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
reflect the share reclassification. Shares of the single class of common stock began trading on the New York
Stock Exchange on November 5, 2003, under the symbol “JAS.”

In the reclassification, Class B common shares, which did not have voting rights other than as required
by law, were amended to have one vote per share and were re-designated as “common shares.” Each of the
Class A common shares, which had one vote per share, were reclassified into 1.15 common shares. This
resulted in approximately 1.6 million incremental common shares being issued at the time of the
reclassification, increasing the number of common shares outstanding by approximately 8 percent.

The quarterly high and low closing stock prices for fiscal 2005 and 2004 are presented in the table
betow:

Class A Class B
Common Shares Common Stock Common Stock
High Low High Low High Low
Fiscal 2005:
January 29, 2005 . ...... ... ..l $28.81  $24.21 — — — —
October 30, 2004 ...................oount. 28.78 23.36 — — — —
July 31,2004 .. .oovi i 29.87 23.87 — — — —
May 1, 2004 ... ........ ... ...l 30.49 23.40 —_ —_ — —
Fiscal 2004:
January 31, 2004 .. ... $26.92  $18.55 $31.14 $30.35 $27.08 $26.43
November 1, 2003 .......... ... ... ... ...... —_ — 32.01 25.40 27.87 22.24
August 2, 2003 . ... o — — 27.95 19.57 24.84 16.91
May 3, 2003 ... — — 26.30 16.75 23.30 14.00

The Company did not pay cash dividends on its common stock during fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004. The
Company’s dividend policy has been to retain earnings for the operation and growth of its business. Payments
of dividends, if any, in the future will be determined by the Board of Directors in light of appropriate
business conditions.

See Part III, Item 12 for a description of our equity compensation plans.
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Purchases of Equity Securities by Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.
Maximum Number

Total Number of of Shares that
Shares Purchased May Yet Be
Total Number  Average Price as Part of Publicly Purchased Under
of Shares Paid Announced Plans the Plans or
Purchased per Share or Programs Programs
October 31 — November 27, 2004........ 2,244 $25.73 862,317 1,287,683
November 28, 2004 — January 1, 2005 ... 1,855 $26.69 864,172 1,285,828
January 2 —29, 2005 ................. 7,020 $26.90 871,192 1,278,808
Total ... 11,119 $26.63 871,192 1,278,808

In December 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a discretionary program that allowed the
Company to buy back 2,150,000 common shares. That program does not have a stated expiration date. In the
table above, the total number of shares purchased represents shares repurchased directly from the market, as
well as shares repurchased from employees related to employee stock options used to satisfy related tax
withholding requirements.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents the Company’s selected financial data for each of the five years ending
January 29, 2005. The selected financial data for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 was derived from the
audited financial statements and should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto. The
Company reclassified certain amounts in the financial statements for the four years ending January 31, 2004
to conform to the current period presentation.

Fiscal Year-Ended®

January 29, January 31, February 1, February 2, February 3,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(Unoudited) (Unaudited)

(Dollars in millions, except per share data)
Operating Results:

Netsales..............cocoiiiiiiin, $1,812.4 $1,734.1 $1,682.0 $1,570.3 $1,483.3
Total net sales percentage increase........ 4.5% 3.1% 7.1% 5.9% 7.6%
Same-store sales percentage increase . ... 3.2% 3.6% 8.4% 5.9% 1.3%

Gross Margin .. ..ooveeneeienernironn i, 862.1 810.6 777.5 693.1 645.1

Selling, general and administrative expenses 719.3 678.1 639.5 643.7 589.3

Depreciation and amortization.............. 43.0 39.0 37.9 40.6 39.4

Stock-based compensation expense @ ... ... 7.7 6.4 0.2 0.5 0.4

Debt repurchase and share reclassification
expenses ... 4.2 5.5 1.9 1.0 —

Operating profit . ........................ 87.9 81.6 98.0 7.3 16.0
Operating profit as a percent of net sales .. 4.8% 4.7% 5.8% 0.5% 1.1%

Interest expense..........oooiiiiiinn.. 13.7 16.5 24.7 314 27.8

Net income (loss) ...t $  46.2 $ 401 §  45.4 $ (14.9) $ (13.9)

Net income (loss) as a percent of net sales. .. 2.5% 2.3% 2.7% (0.9)% (0.9)%

Per Share Data (:

Net income (loss}) —diluted ............... $ 202 $ 182 $ 210 $ (0.75) $ (0.72)

Average shares outstanding — diluted (000's) 22,887 22,003 21,632 19,888 19,420

Financial Position:

Cash and cash equivalents................. $ 79.6 § 174 $ 632 $ 211 $ 175
INVentores ... ouueiet i 439.7 404.6 363.1 369.0 451.0
Inveﬁtory TUTMOVEr i 2.3x 2.4x 2.5x 2.1x 1.8x
Current assets . .....oovviiinnnei 562.9 467.4 468.6 435.4 503.3
Property, equipment and leasehold

improvements, net .. ...l 238.0 218.4 203.2 224.6 203.3
Totalassets............ooviiiiiii, 839.3 719.8 714.3 705.4 752.8
Current labilities .. ......... ... ... ..., 258.8 198.2 205.8 205.4 223.5
Long-termdebt............ ... ..o Ll 100.0 113.7 162.9 223.7 240.0
Shareholders’ equity ................ A 408.9 340.8 285.0 227.8 243.8
Long-term debt to total capitalization .. ... .. 19.7% 25.0% 36.4% 49.5% 49.6%
Long-term debt to total capitalization, net of

[= T 1 PP 4.8% 22.0% 25.9% 47.1% 47.7%
Per Share Data ":
Book value 9 ... ... $ 18.10 $ 15.61 $ 13.52 $ 11.33 § 12.43
Shares outstanding, net of treasury shares

(000'S) v e v 22,585 21,828 21,079 20,106 19,612
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data (Continued)
Fiscal Year-Ended®

January 29, January 31, February 1, February 2, February 3,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(Dollars in millions, except per share data)
Other Financial Information:

Return on average equity ™ ............... 12.3% 12.8% 17.7% (6.3)% (5.6)%
Capital expenditures:
Cash. .. o $ b58.2 $ 522 § 227 $ 66.5 $ 359
Cash — landlord reimbursement © .. ... ... 8.9 5.4 0.5 3.2 3.8
Total capital expenditures ............... 67.1 57.6 23.2 69.7 39.7
Store Count:
Traditional stores ........................ 737 806 847 889 949
Superstores . ... 114 86 72 70 58
Total oo 851 892 919 959 1,007

Store Square Footage (000's) ©

Traditional stores ............. ... ........ 10,721 11,646 12,165 12,684 13,381
SUPperstores ... ... 4,732 3,731 3,270 3,213 2,687
Total ... 15,453 15,377 15,435 15,897 16,068

Note: The Company restated its consolidated financial statements for all previous years presented, due to
revision of certain lease accounting practices. The restatement is discussed in “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and in “Note 2 —
Restatement of Prior Financial Information” contained in the notes to consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements and related schedule of the Company as of
February 2, 2002 and February 3, 2001 and for the years then ended were audited by auditors who
have ceased operations. As a result of the restatement discussed above, the audit report of the
auditors who have ceased operations should no longer be relied upon.

All years include 52 weeks except for the fiscal year-ended February 3, 2001, which includes 53 weeks.

Same-store sales are defined as net sales from stores that have been open one year or more. Net sales are
included in the same-store sales calculation on the first day of the first month following the one-year
anniversary of a store’s opening. In conjunction with the expansion or relocation of our stores, we exclude
the net sales results from these stores in our same-store sales calculation until the first day of the first
month following the one-year anniversary of its expansion or relocation. Further, in a 53-week year, net
sales are compared to the comparable 53 weeks of the prior period.

© Includes store pre-opening and closing costs which the Company reports separately in its consolidated
statements of operations for the three-years ended January 29, 2005. See the consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Stock-based compensation expense includes the expensing of stock options under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Expense,” which we
adopted in the first quarter of fiscal 2004, and the amortization of the fair value of restricted stock
granted to employees. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” and “Note 8 — Stock-Based Compensation” contained in the notes to consolidated financial
statements.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data (Continued)

) Debt repurchase and share reclassification expenses include expenses related to the early extinguishment
of debt and costs associated with the share reclassification. See “Note 3 — Share Reclassification”
contained in the notes to consolidated financial statements. .

® Shares outstanding, as well as average basic and diluted shares outstanding used to calculate earnings per

share, reflect the impact of the increased shares outstanding as a result of the share reclassification that
was approved by shareholders on November 4, 2003. Per share data reflect the impact of this share

reclassification.
9 Book value is calculated by dividing shareholders’ equity by shares outstanding, net of treasury shares.

M Return on average equity is calculated by dividing net income by the average of the Company
shareholders’ equity as of the beginning and end of its current fiscal year.

Capital expenditures reimbursed by the landlord represents the cost of assets acquired through the
utilization of landiord lease incentives.

1=

Total store square footage includes selling floor space and inventory storage areas.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This discussion provides the reader with information that will assist in an overall understanding of our
financial statements, changes in certain key indicators in those financial statements from year to year, the
factors that account for those changes and how certain accounting principles have impacted our financial
statements. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements
and notes to the consolidated financial statements presented in this Form 10-K. The financial information
presented for periods prior to fiscal 2005 have been restated to reflect the correction of an error in
accounting for leases. See “Restatement of Financial Statements” below. In addition, the financial information
presented for years prior to fiscal 2005 have been reclassified for certain amounts to conform to the fiscal
2005 presentation.

Overview

We are the nation’s largest specialty retailer of fabrics and one of the largest specialty retailers of crafts,
serving customers in their pursuit of apparel and craft sewing, crafting, home decorating and other creative
endeavors. Our retail stores (operating as Jo-Ann Fabrics and Crafts traditional stores and Jo-Ann superstores)
feature a variety of competitively priced merchandise used in sewing, crafting and home decorating projects,
including fabrics, notions, crafts, frames, scrapbooking material, artificial and dried flowers, home accents,
finished seasonal and home décor merchandise.

As of January 29, 2005, we operated 851 stores in 47 states (737 traditional stores and
114 superstores). Our traditional stores offer a complete selection of fabric and a convenience assortment of
crafts, floral, finished seasonal and home décor merchandise. Our traditional stores average 14,550 square feet
and generated net sales per store of approximately $1.6 million in fiscal 2005. Our superstores offer an
expanded and more comprehensive product assortment than our traditional stores. Our superstores also offer
custom framing, floral arrangement and educational programs that our traditional stores do not. Our
superstores that opened prior to fiscal 2003 average approximately 45,000 square feet and generated net
sales per store of approximately $6.3 million in fiscal 2005. Qur current superstore prototype aver-
ages 35,000 square feet and targets sales of $5.25 million for its first year of operation. We opened 29 of
these new prototype superstores in fiscal 2005 and we currently have 43 of the prototype superstores in
operation at January 29, 2005. Fourteen of the prototype superstores have been open at least one year and
averaged $5.0 million in net sales in their first year of operation.

We review and manage to a number of key indicators in evaluating financial performance, the most
significant of which are:

* Net sales, including same-store sales by our two store formats, traditional stores and superstores. Net
sales measures our overall sales growth and same-store sales measures whether our existing stores
continue to grow their sales volume. We also closely monitor per transaction average ticket value and
customer traffic, both in total and by store format. These indicators help measure our effectiveness in
attracting customers into our stores and the effectiveness of our product assortment, promotions and
service on sales. We also measure our sales per square foot performance in both of our store formats
and compare them with our immediate competitors.

* Gross margin rate to sales. In addition, gross margin return on investment (“GMROI") is used by our
merchandising organization to evaluate the gross margin performance relative to the average inventory
investment. Merchandise selection and future decisions are, in part, based on the GMROI performance.

* Selling, general and administrative expense as a rate to sales. We also compare operating margins to
those of our competitors.
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e Inventory turnover. We monitor and focus extensive effort on managing our inventory investment,
which is our single largest invested asset. Increasing inventory turnover is critical to improving our
working capital position and improving our overall GMROL.

* Debt to total cabitalization. We have a goal of maintaining our year-end debt to total capitalization
ratios at or below the current level.

Restatement of Financial Statements

We have restated the consolidated balance sheet at January 31, 2004, and the consclidated statements
of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years ended January 31, 2004 and
February 1, 2003 in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We have also restated our quarterly financial
information for fiscal 2004 and the first three quarters of fiscal 2005. See note 2 in notes to the consolidated
financial statements for a further discussion of the restatement and a summary of the effects of these
changes on our consolidated balance sheets as of January 31, 2004, as well as on our consolidated
statements of operations and cash flows for fiscal years 2004 and 2003. The accompanying Management’s
Discussion and Analysis gives effect to these corrections.

On February 7, 2005, the Office of the Chief Accountant of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) issued a letter to the Center for Public Company Audit Firms of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, which clarified existing generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) applicable to
leases and leasehold improvements. We have consistently accounted for leases in accordance with our
interpretation of GAAP and common industry practice. After conducting an internal review of our lease
accounting procedures, and after discussion by management and the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of
the Board of Directors of the Company with its independent registered public accounting firm, we determined
that our historical accounting for leases was not consistent with the accounting principles described in the
SEC’s letter. Accordingly, we decided to restate our financial statements for prior periods to correct these
errors. We do not believe the differences in prior years’ financial statements were material to any individual
year presented. Further, the restatement adjustments are non-cash and had no impact on net sales or same-
store sales figures.

We have reviewed our property lease portfolio and have recognized the effect of pre-opening “rent
holidays” over the related lease terms on a straight-line basis. Tenant allowances have been reclassified from
net property and equipment to other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. Tenant
allowances have also been reclassified from a reduction of depreciation and amortization expense to a
reduction of rent expense in the consolidated statements of operations and from a reduction of capital
expenditures to an increase in cash provided by operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash
flows.

Retained earnings at the beginning of fiscal year 2003 have been adjusted for the after-tax impact of
earlier periods. While we do not consider the net dollar amounts to be material to net earnings, financial
position or net cash flows for any individual period presented, we believe it is appropriate to align our
historical accounting results with the SEC's comments on lease accounting under GAAP, and we have done so,
as reflected in our decision to restate results for certain prior years. These accounting changes reduced net
income by $0.9 million for the fiscal year-ended January 31, 2004 and increased net income by $0.5 million
for the fiscal year-ended February 1, 2003, and resulted in a $5.0 million reduction in retained earnings at
the beginning of fiscal year 2003.

We have not amended and do not intend to amend our previously fited Annual Reports on Form 10-K or
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the periods affected by the restatement that ended prior to January 29,
2005. For this reason, the consolidated financial statements, auditors’ reports and related financial
information for the affected periods contained in such reports should no longer be relied upon.
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Executive Overview of Fiscal 2005

Fiscal 2005 represented our third consecutive year of strong operating performance, after completing a
turnaround announced at the end of fiscal 2001 that was substantially completed in fiscal 2003.

Our strategy is to grow by replacing many of our existing traditional stores with superstores. Our
research has demonstrated that our customers have a better perception of the quality and pricing of our
products when they are presented in our superstore format. We believe that our prototype 35,000 square foot
superstore gives us a competitive advantage in the industry. Our superstores provide a unigue shopping
experience by offering a full creative selection — sewing, crafting, framing, seasonal, floral and home décor
accessories — all under one roof. On average we close 1.1 traditional stores for every superstore that we
open. Our superstores typically average over three times the revenues of the traditional stores they replace.
In markets where we have opened multiple superstores, we have been able to grow our revenues significantly
and, we believe, expanded the market size and our market share.

In addition to the strong operating performance, a number of strategic initiatives were accomplished in
fiscal 2005:

* Continued the rollout of our new 35,000 square foot prototype superstore, opening 29 of these stores
during fiscal 2005. Our current superstore prototype is 20 percent smaller than our larger superstore
format and displays our destination assortment of fabric and crafts in a visually exciting, yet
productive format.

* Refinanced our subordinated debt and amended our bank credit facility. In February 2004, we issued
$100 million of 7.500 percent senior subordinated notes, which enabled us to repurchase the
remaining $64.4 million of our 10.375 percent senior subordinated notes that were outstanding at the
beginning of the year. In April 2004, we amended our senior credit facility, extending the term until
May 2009 and reducing the commitment to $350 million (See Note 6 — Financing). These financing
actions position us to successfully execute our planned growth strategy over the next three to five
years.

Highlights of our financial performance in fiscal 2005 are as follows:

» Net sales increased 4.5 percent to $1.812 billion. Same-store sales increased 3.2 percent versus a
same-store sales increase of 3.6 percent in the prior year.

* We expanded our gross profit margin by 90 basis points, to 47.6 percent of net revenue from
46.7 percent in fiscal 2004. This improvement was primarily due to our strategic decision to be less
promotional. ’

* We grew net earnings by 11 percent. Net income was $2.02 per diluted share, compared to $1.82 per
diluted share in fiscal 2004. We delivered this solid earnings growth in spite of the higher expenses
caused by increased store openings and closings, and investments in our future. We opened 29
superstores compared with 16 in fiscal 2004.

¢ We continued to focus on debt reduction and the strengthening of our balance sheet and lowered our
debt levels, net of cash, by $76 million.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the financial information through operating profit, expressed as a
percentage of net sales. The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated
financial statements and related notes thereto.

Percentage of Net Sales
Fiscal Year-Ended

Jan 29, Jan 31, Feb 1,

2005 2004 2003
(Restated) (Restated)
Net Sales ..o e 100.0%  100.0% 100.0%
Gross Margin .. ..o e 47.6% 46.7% 46.2%
Selling, general and administrative expenses .................. 38.7% 38.3% 37.6%
Store pre-opening and closing costs . .............. ... .o 1.0% 0.8% 0.4%
Depreciation and amortization............... ... ... 2.4% 2.2% 2.3%

Stock-based compensation expense. . 0.5% 0.4% —
Debt repurchase and share reclassification expenses ............ _0.2% _ 0.3% _0.1%
Operating profit ...... .. . ... ... _48% _ 4T7% _58%

Comparison of the 52 Weeks Ended January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004

Net sales. Net sales for fiscal 2005 increased 4.5 percent to $1.812 billion from $1.734 billion in the
prior year. Same-store sales increased 3.2 percent compared with a same-store sales increase of 3.6 percent
for fiscal 2004, We operated fewer stores in fiscal 2005 versus a year ago. Our total store count at the end of
the year was down 41 stores, or 4.6 percent from last year; however, the number of superstores in operation
increased to 114 from 86 in fiscal 2004. Total stare square footage increased slightly from fiscal 2004, to
16.453 million square feet. Superstores accounted for approximately 33 percent of total net sales during fiscal
2005 compared with approximately 27 percent of total net sales for fiscal 2004.

By store format, our same-store sales performance for traditional stores increased 3.5 percent versus a
same-store sales increase of 3.7 percent for fiscal 2004, Same-store sales for superstores increased 2.6 percent
versus a same-store sales increase of 3.1 percent for the prior year. In both store formats, we saw an increase
in average ticket partially offset by a slight decline in customer traffic for the full fiscal year. Qur strategy to
be less promotional, which has benefited our realized selling margins, has had a larger negative impact on
superstore sales than traditional store sales because of our dual vehicle advertising strategy (direct mail and
newspaper inserts) in superstores.

By product category, the businesses that performed well were our sewing and crafting categories, led by
strong performances in the fleece, paper crafting and yarn businesses. Our sewing and crafting businesses,
excluding home decorating textiles, represented 61 percent of our total year net sales, and are up
approximately 6.6 percent on a same-store sales basis on improved margin rates. Product categories that are
tied more closely to home décor experienced softness. Our home decorating textile category is down
approximately 1.9 percent on a same-store sales basis for the year. Our toughest category of the business
continues to be finished seasonal. Same-store sales of finished seasonal goods decreased approximately
8.3 percent.

Gross margin. Gross margins may not be comparable to those of our competitors and other retailers.
Some retailers include all of the costs related to their distribution network in cost of sales, while we exclude
a portion of them from gross margin, including those costs instead within selling, general and administrative
expenses. As a percent of net sales, gross margin was 47.6 percent for fiscal 2005 compared with
46.7 percent in the prior year, an overall increase of 90 basis points. Our strategy to be less promotional has
been successful in improving our realized selling margins. This strategy has primarily benefited the selling
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margins in superstores, where we run multiple advertising vehicles. In addition, we have been able to
improve gross margins by improving our product sourcing opportunities.

During the third quarter, we recorded a $1.7 million charge which was paid in the fourth quarter in
connection with a voluntary “prior disclosure” made to U.S. Customs, which lowered our fiscal 2005 gross
margin rate by 10 basis points. Over a five-year period encompassing fiscal years 2000 through 2004, we had
inadvertently failed to adequately assess anti-dumping duty on certain candles imported from China. The
failures resulted from certain products being inaccurately classified at the time of import.

Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses
include store and administrative payroll, employee benefits, distribution costs, store occupancy costs,
advertising expenses and administrative expenses. SG&A expenses, excluding other expenses separately
identified in the statement of operations, were $700.8 million for fiscal 2005 versus $664.8 million in the
prior year. As a percentage of net sales, SG&A expenses increased to 38.7 percent versus 38.3 percent for
fiscal 2004 with most of the increase for the full year attributable to increased distribution costs and higher
administrative costs.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense increased $4.0 million to
$43.0 million in fiscal 2005 from $39.0 million in fiscal 2004, due to the increased level of capital
expenditures. Further discussion of capital expenditures is provided under “Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

Store pre-opening and closing costs. Pre-opening costs are expensed as incurred and relate to the costs
incurred prior to a new store opening, which includes lease costs recognized prior to the store opening,
hiring and training costs for new employees and processing of initial merchandise. Store closing costs consist
of lease termination costs, lease costs for closed locations, loss on disposal of fixtures and equipment,
severance for employees, third party inventory liquidation costs and other costs incidental to store closings.
Store pre-opening and closing costs increased $5.2 million to $18.5 million in fiscal 2005, due to the
increased level of real estate activity year-over-year. As a percentage of sales, store pre-opening and closing
costs for fiscal 2005 increased to 1.0 percent from 0.8 percent in the prior year. During fiscal 2005, we
opened 29 superstores and two traditional stores, and we closed 72 traditional stores. As we continue to
increase the number of new store openings, we expect our store pre-opening and closing costs will continue
to rise.

Stock-based compensation expense. Stock-based compensation expense includes the expensing of stock
options under Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation Expense,” which we adopted in the first quarter of fiscal 2004, and the amortization of the
value of restricted stock granted to employees. Stock-based compensation expense was $7.7 million in fiscal
2005, compared with $6.4 million in the prior year.

Debt repurchase and share reclassification expenses. Debt repurchase and share reclassification expenses
for fiscal 2005 were $4.2 million versus $5.5 million in the prior year. The fiscal 2005 expense represents the
premium paid to repurchase $64.4 million of our 10.375 percent senior subordinated notes during the first
guarter at an aggregate premium of 103.4 percent to par value and write-off of the related deferred financing
costs.

During fiscal 2004 we redeemed or repurchased approximately $58.5 million of our senior subordinated
notes at an aggregate premium of 105.4 percent to par value, and we recorded a $4.3 million pre-tax charge
for debt repurchase expenses including the cash premium paid to par value and the write-off of deferred
finance charges and original issue discount. Share reclassification expenses associated with the reclassification
of our former Class A and Class B common shares into a single class of common stock totaled $1.2 million in
fiscal 2004.

As stated above, we completed certain capital financing initiatives during the first quarter of fiscal 2005,
which are discussed further below under “Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

Operating profit. QOperating profit was $87.9 million in fiscal 2005, compared with $81.6 million for
fiscal 2004.
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Interest expense. Interest expense for fiscal 2005 decreased $2.8 million to $13.7 million from
$16.5 million in fiscal 2004. The decrease is attributable to a decrease in our average debt levels between
years, and a lower all-in borrowing rate. Our average debt levels were $160 million this fiscal year versus
$174 million last year. '

Income taxes. Our effective income tax rate for fiscal 2005 decreased to 37.7 percent from 38.4 percent
in the prior year. The reduction in the effective tax rate is primarily based on an anticipated higher
realization of certain jobs tax credits.

Comparison of the 52 Weeks Ended January 31, 2004 and February 1, 2003

Net sales. Net sales for fiscal 2004 increased 3.1 percent to $1.734 billion from $1.682 billion in the
prior year. Same-store sales increased 3.6 percent compared with a same-store sales increase of 8.4 percent
for fiscal 2003. Approximately 80 percent of this increase was driven by an increase in average ticket. Same-
store sales growth generated all of the overall net sales increase, as we operated fewer stores at the end of
fiscat 2004 than a year ago. Our total store count at the end of the year was down 27 stores; however, the
number of superstores in operation increased to 86 in fiscal 2004 from 72 in fiscal 2003. Store square footage
decreased slightly to 15.377 million square feet during the year. Superstores accounted for approximately
27 percent of total net sales for fiscal 2004 versus 25 percent for fiscal 2003.

By store format, our same-store sales performance for traditional stores increased 3.7 percent for fiscal
2004 versus a same-store sales increase of 8.5 percent in fiscal 2003, with almost the entire increase
attributable to an increase in average ticket. Same-store sales for superstores increased 3.1 percent versus a
same-store sales increase of 7.8 percent for the prior year. The majority of the increase, over 80 percent, was
driven by an increase in customer traffic.

During the year, we saw sales strength with positive same-store sales increases in all of our major
product categories, with the exception of finished seasonal goods. Same-store sales of finished seasonal
goods, which represented 12 percent of our total same-store sales for the year, decreased approximately
3.7 percent; however the gross margin rate in this category improved over 200 basis points versus fiscal
2003. We made the decision to be less aggressive in our promotional pricing during the second half of the
year versus the prior year. The finished seasonal business, specifically Fall, Halloween and Christmas
merchandise, was the category most affected by our decision to reduce promotional expenses and product
markdowns.

Gross margin.  Gross margins may not be comparable to those of our competitors and other retailers.
Some retailers inctude all of the costs related to their distribution network in cost of sales, while we exclude
a portion of them from gross margin, including those costs instead within our selling, general and
administrative expenses. As a percent of net sales, gross margin was 46.7 percent for fiscal 2004 compared
with 46.2 percent in the prior year, an increase of 50 basis points. An increase in selling margins of 10 basis
points, which was accomplished by a strong performance in the second half of the fiscal year due to a less
promotional stance, coupled with a 40 basis point improvement in store shrink rates, were the primary
contributors to the increase in the gross margin rate for the year.

Selling, general and administrative expenses, SG&A expenses include store and administrative payroll,
employee benefits, distribution costs, store occupancy costs, advertising expenses and administrative
expenses. SG&A expenses were $664.8 million for fiscal 2004 versus $633.2 million in the prior year. As a
percentage of net sales, SG&A expenses increased to 38.3 percent versus 37.6 percent for fiscal 2003. Higher
advertising costs in the third guarter, due to our 60th Anniversary celebration, and increased logistics costs,
attributable to the decision to flow seasonal product to stores differently and replenish in-season, were the
primary contributors to the deterioration in expense leverage.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense increased $1.1 million to
$39.0 million in fiscal 2004 from $37.9 million in fiscal 2003, due to the increased level of capital
expenditures.
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Store pre-opening and closing costs. Pre-opening costs are expensed as incurred and relate to the costs
incurred prior to a new store opening, which includes lease costs recognized prior to the store opening,
hiring and training costs for new employees and processing of initial merchandise. Store closing costs consist
of lease termination costs, lease costs for closed locations, loss on disposal of fixtures and equipment,
severance for employees, third party inventory liquidation costs and other costs incidental to store closings.
Store pre-opening and closing costs increased $7.0 million to $13.3 million in fiscal 2004, due to the
increased level of real estate activity year-over-year. As a percentage of sales, store pre-opening and closing
costs for fiscal 2004 increased to 0.8 percent from 0.4 percent in the prior year. During fiscal 2004, we
opened 16 superstores, converted four larger traditional stores to the superstore format and opened three
larger traditional stores. We also closed 45 traditional stores and one superstore.

Stock-based compensation expense Stock-based compensation expense includes the expensing of stock
options due to our adoption of the fair-value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation
under SFAS No. 123, and the amortization of the value of restricted stock granted to emptoyees. We adopted
SFAS No. 123 in the first quarter of fiscal 2004 under the modified-prospective method allowed under the
transition provisions provided under SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure, an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” Stock-based compensation expense was
$6.4 million in fiscal 2004, compared with $0.2 million in fiscal 2003. See Note 1 — Significant Accounting
Policies — Stock-Based Compensation for pro-forma information.

Debt repurchase and share reclossification expenses. Debt repurchase and share reclassification expenses
for fiscal 2004 were $5.5 million versus $1.9 million in the prior year, a $3.6 million increase. Share
reclassification expenses associated with the reclassification of our former Class A and Class B common shares
into a single class of common stock totaled $1.2 million for the fiscal year. Debt repurchase expenses of
$4.3 million were incurred to repurchase approximately $58.5 million of our 10.375 percent senior
subordinated notes in fiscal 2004 versus $1.9 million of expenses incurred to repurchase $27.1 million of
senjor subordinated notes in fiscal 2003. The charges include the cash premium paid for the early redemption
and the write-off of the related deferred finance charges.

Operating profit. Operating profit was $81.6 million in fiscal 2004, compared with $98.0 million for
fiscal 2003.

Interest expense. Interest expense for fiscal 2004 decreased $8.2 million to $16.5 million from
$24.7 million in fiscal 2003. The decrease is primarily due to a reduction of approximately $65 million in our
average debt levels between years. Our average debt levels were $174 million in fiscal 2004 versus
$239 million in fiscal 2003.

Income taxes. Our effective income tax rate for fiscal 2004 increased to 38.4 percent from 38.0 percent
in fiscal 2003, as a result of an adjustment to the effective rate in fiscal 2004 due to a permanent tax
difference related to stock-based compensation expense, under SFAS No. 123.

Store Closing Charges

In fiscal 2001, we experienced significant difficulty with the implementation of SAP Retail. As a result of
these implementation issues, declining operating margins and an increase in debt levels due to higher capital
spending to install SAP Retail and the opening of a second distribution center in fiscal 2002, our strategy
shifted from accelerating the growth of our superstore concept to improving the productivity of our existing
asset base and realizing the benefits from our completed infrastructure investments. At the end of fiscal
2001, we implemented a turnaround plan (the “Turnaround Plan”).

At the end of fiscal 2003, a decision was made to continue to operate eight locations, originally targeted
for closure in the Turnaround Plan, due to our inability to successfully negotiate an acceptable arrangement
to exit the lease. A total of $7.7 million for estimated lease obligations of stores to be closed as part of the
Turnaround Plan was reversed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, The reversal related to stores where
estimates were revised, as well as the eight stores we chose not to close. We also recorded an asset
impairment charge in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003 of $6.7 million for various store locations, representing
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the difference between the asset carrying value and the future net discounted cash flows estimated to be
generated by those assets. The remainder of the store closing charges in fiscal 2003 and the store closing
charges incurred in fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2005, highlighted in the table below, represent lease obligations
and other costs associated with stores identified for closure that were not accrued as part of the Turnaround
Plan. As of the end of fiscal 2005, all stores identified for closing as part of the Turnaround Plan have been
closed.

As discussed in Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies, effective December 31, 2002, we began
accounting for the costs of store closings in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” We account for asset impairment in accordance with
SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” We review the productivity of
our store base on an ongoing basis and actively manage our real estate to preserve maximum flexibility in
lease terms. As a result, we have only a [imited number of mature stores where the store contribution is not
cash flow positive, In addition, we are paying rent on just eight store locations where we have not yet
obtained a sublease tenant or executed a lease termination.

The charges to the statement of operations related to store closings were $8.9 million, $3.7 million and
$1.5 million in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These charges are included in the line item “Store
pre-opening and closing costs” in the statements of operations included in the consolidated financial
statements.

Summarized below is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending store closing reserve balances for the
three fiscal years ended January 29, 2005:

Non-cancelable

Lease Asset Other
Obligations Impairments Costs Total
(Dallars in mitlions)

Balance at February 2, 2002..................... §11.2 5 — $1.2 $124
Amounts charged to income ..................... (5.9) 6.7 0.7 1.5
Utilization:

Cash ..o (1.8) - 0.9) (2.7)

Non-Cash ... — (6.7) (0.1) _(6.8)
Balance at February 1, 2003 ... . ... ... ... 3.5 - 0.9 4.4
Amounts charged to income ........... .. .. ..., (0.1) 2.1 1.7 3.7
Utilization:

Cash oo (1.6) — (1.3)  (2.9)

Non-Cash ............ ... .. ... ... ... (2.1) 0.3) _(24)
Balance at January 31, 20040, ... ... ... ... 1.8 - 1.0 2.8
Amounts charged to income .......... ... .. ... 1.4 2.5 5.0 8.9
Utilization:

Cash ... (2.7} — (5.2) (7.9

Non-Cash ........ ... . ... ... ... L. — (2.5) — 2.5
Balance at January 29, 2005 ............. ... ... 0.5 § — $08 $13

U
H
N
|

() Fiscal years 2004 and 2003 have been restated to reflect changes discussed in Note 2 — Restatement of
Prior Financial Information.

Non-cancelable lease obligations for fiscal 2003 include the lesser of the estimated buyout or remaining
lease obligations of the stores to be closed. Estimated lease obligations were reduced by anticipated sublease
rental income. As discussed in Note 1, in fiscal 2005 and 2004, these costs are accounted for in accordance
with SFAS No. 146, which requires certain lease costs to be expensed as incurred.
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Asset impairments include write-downs of fixed assets to estimated fair value for stores closed, or
scheduled to be closed, where impairment exists. The asset impairment represents the difference between the
asset carrying value and our estimate of the future net discounted cash flows to be generated by those
assets.

Other costs represent other miscellaneous store closing costs, including among other things, costs related
to third-party inventory liquidation and fixtures, signage and register removal.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our capital requirements are primarily for capital expenditures in connection with infrastructure
investments, new store openings and working capital requirements for seasonal inventory builds and new
store inventory purchases. Working capital requirements needed to finance our operations fluctuate during the
year and reach their highest levels during the third fiscal quarter as we increase our inventory in preparation
for our peak selling season during the months of September through December. These requirements will be
funded through a combination of internally generated cash flows from operations, credit extended by
suppliers and borrowings under our bank credit facility.

The following table provides cash flow related information for the three fiscal years ended January 29,
2005.

2005 2004 2003
(Restated) (Restated)
Net cash provided by operating activities . .................... $141.9 $ 51.7 $119.7
Net cash used for investing activities .................. ... ... (67.1) (51.1) (23.2)
Net cash used for financing activities ........................ (12.6) (46.4) (54.4)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ........... $ 62.2 $(45.8) $ 42.1
Ending cash and cash equivalents ........................... $79.6 $ 17.4 $ 63.2

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $141.9 million in fiscal 2005, compared with $51.7 million
in fiscal 2004, an increase of $90.2 million. The increase was generated by changes in operating assets and
liabilities, which in 2005 represented a $35.8 million source of cash versus a $49.0 million use of cash in
2004. Cash flows from operating activities, before changes in operating assets and liabilities, were
$106.1 million in fiscal 2005 versus $100.7 million generated in fiscal 2004.

Inventories, net of payable support, decreased $10.1 million in fiscal 2005, compared with an increase of
$49.4 million in fiscal 2004. Inventories increased $35.1 million in fiscal 2005 to support our superstore
growth plans in fiscal 2006. We plan to open 11 of the 40 fiscal 2006 planned superstores in the first quarter
of fiscal 2006. To support these openings we had the merchandise in our distribution center at year-end. We
also increased inventory levels in core product categories such as scrapbooking, yarn, and fleece fabric which
have experienced solid sales performances, while reducing our investment in other categories such as finished
seasonal. Inventory turns for fiscal 2005 were approximately 2.3 times, compared with 2.4 times in fiscal
2004 and 2.5 times in fiscal 2003.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $51.7 million in fiscal 2004, compared with $119.7 million
in fiscal 2003, a decrease of $68.0 million, primarily caused by an increase in inventory and a decrease in
accounts payable, together totaling a decrease of $62.1 million from fiscal 2003. Cash flows from operating
activities, before changes in operating assets and liabilities, were $100.7 million in fiscal 2004 versus
$109.2 million in fiscal 2003.
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Net Cash Used For Investing Activities

Net cash used for investing activities for fiscal 2005 totaled $67.1 million compared with $51.1 million
in fiscal 2004. Capital expenditures were $67.1 million during fiscal 2005 versus $57.6 million in fiscal 2004
and are discussed further below under the caption “Capital Expenditures.” Partially offsetting the increase in
capital expenditures for fiscal 2004 was $6.5 million of consideration received from the sale of our equity
investment in BouClair, Inc., a Canadian fabric retailer.

Net cash used for investing activities in fiscal 2004 totaled $51.1 miltion compared with $23.2 mitlion in
fiscal 2003 which consisted entirely of capital expenditures.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures estimated for fiscal 2006 and for the last three fiscal years consist of cash
expenditures and cash expenditures reimbursed by the landlord. Capital expenditures primarily relate to the
operation of the stores, including new store openings, maintenance capital and information technology. We
also incur capital outlays for distribution center equipment and other non-store capital investments. Landlord
reimbursed capital expenditures represent the cost of assets acquired with landlord lease incentives. Capital
expenditures are summarized as follows:

2006

OQutlook 2005 2004 2003
Cash. ... . $110-$120  $58.2  $52.2 $22.7
Cash — landlord reimbursed .......................... $20 89 54 05
Total .. ... $130-§140 $67.1 §$57.6  $23.2

|
|
|

Capital expenditures for fiscal 2005 totaled $67.1 million. Store related expenditures, including our
superstore openings, accounted for over 75 percent of total capital spending in fiscal 2005.

Capital expenditures for fiscal 2004 totaled $57.6 million. Store related expenditures, including 19 new
store openings, represented over 80 percent of the capital spending. During the year, we opened 16
superstores, converted four larger traditional stores to the superstore format and opened three larger
traditional stores.

Capital expenditures for fiscal 2003 totaled $23.2 million, our lowest level of capital spending in six
years, as we focused on maximizing cash flow to reduce debt. During fiscal 2003, we opened one superstore
and two traditional stores and converted two larger traditional stores to our superstore format. We also
relocated four traditional stores.

We anticipate capital expenditures in fiscal 2006 of approximately $130 to $140 million, to support
increased superstore openings and the construction of our third full-service distribution center scheduled to
open in April of 2006 in Opelika, Alabama. This facility will be approximately 700,000 square feet in size, and
we estimate it will cost approximately $45 miltion to build. We expect approximately $35 million to
$40 million of the capital spending for this third distribution center to occur in fiscal 2006.

During fiscal 2006, we plan to open approximately 40 new superstores. As we open more new stores and
begin to increase capital expenditures in future years, we envision our growth plans will be largely self-
funded using cash from operations.

Net Cash Used For Financing Activities

Net cash used for financing activities was $12.6 million during fiscal 2005 compared with $46.4 million
during fiscal 2004, Long-term debt at the end of fiscal 2005 was $100 million, our lowest year-end debt level
in seven years. Debt levels decreased $13.7 million during fiscal 2005, compared with a net decrease of
$49.2 million in the prior year. During the first quarter of fiscal 2005, we completed two capital financing
initiatives. In February 2004, we issued $100 million of 7.500 percent senior subordinated notes, which
enabled us to repurchase the remaining $64.4 million of our 10.375 percent senior subordinated notes that
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were outstanding at the beginning of the year at an aggregate premium of 103.4 percent to par value. In
April, we amended our senior credit facility, extending the term until May 2009 and reducing the commitment
to $350 million. Further discussion of these financing initiatives are discussed under Sources of Liquidity
below.

As of January 29, 2005, we had the ability to borrow up to an additional $204.1 mitlion under our Credit
Facility.

Net cash used for financing activities was $46.4 million during fiscal 2004 compared with $54.4 million
during fiscal 2003. Long-term debt at the end of fiscal 2004 was $113.7 million. Debt levels decreased
$49.2 million during fiscal 2004, compared with a net decrease of $60.8 million in the prior year. During
fiscal 2004, we redeemed or repurchased in the open market, approximately $58.5 million of our
10.375 percent senior subordinated notes at an aggregate premium of 105.4 percent to par value. These
purchases were made utilizing excess cash on hand and borrowings under our bank credit facility.

Net cash used for financing activities during fiscal 2003 was $54.4 million, primarily related to a
$60.8 million net decrease in debt borrowings resulting from cash generated by strong operating performance.
During fiscal 2003 we repurchased, in the open market, $27.1 million of our 10.375 percent senior
subordinated notes at a purchase price of $28.3 million or 104.3 percent to par value.

Common Share Repurchases

During fiscal 2005, we purchased a total of 0.1 million of our common shares at an aggregate price of
$3.3 million, utilizing proceeds received from stock option exercises. As of January 29, 2005, we are
authorized to purchase up to an additional 1.3 million shares of our common stock under previous
authorizations from our Board of Directors.

Sources of Liquidity

We have three principal sources of liquidity: cash from operations, cash and cash equivalents on hand,
and our senior bank credit facility.

We believe that our senior bank credit facility, coupled with cash on hand and cash from operations, will
be sufficient to cover our working capital, capital expenditure and debt service requirement needs for the
foreseeable future.

Qur liquidity is based, in part, on maintaining our current debt ratings. As of January 29, 2005, our
long-term unsecured debt was rated “B2” by Moody's Investor Services and “B-" by Standard & Poor’s. In
assessing our credit strength, both Moody's and Standard & Poor's consider our capital structure and financial
policies, as well as our consolidated balance sheet and other financial information. If our debt ratings are
downgraded, it could adversely impact, among other things, our future borrowing costs, access to capital
markets and new store operating lease costs.

Our current debt obligations as of the end of fiscal 2005 include no borrowings outstanding under our
$350 million senior bank credit facility, and $100 million outstanding under our 7.500 percent senior
subordinated notes.

Senior Bank Credit Facility. In April 2004, we amended and extended the expiration date of our senior
bank credit facility originally entered into in April 2001 and led by Bank of America Retail Finance, Inc.
(formerly Fleet Retail Group, Inc.). The senior bank credit facility, as amended (the “Credit Facility”), is a
$350 million revolver that expires April 30, 2009. The prior senior bank credit facility provided for a
$325 million revolver and a $40 million term loan, and would have expired in April 2005. The Credit Facility
is secured by a first priority perfected security interest in our inventory, accounts receivable, property and
other assets and guaranteed by each of our subsidiaries. The Credit Facility contains a sub-limit for letters of
credit of $200 million. Deferred financing costs related to the amendment of the Credit Facility in the amount
of $1.6 million, as well as the unamortized portion of the deferred financing costs related to the original
financing, are being amortized over the term of the Credit Facility.
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In fiscal 2002 we established an interest rate swap with Bank of America Retail Finance, Inc. with a
fixed London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) of 6.72 percent, a notional amount of $90.0 million which
decreased to $40 million on May 1, 2003 and an expiration date of April 30, 2005.

As of January 29, 2005, we had $67.9 million of letters of credit outstanding under our Credit Facility.
There were no outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility at January 29, 2005.

Our weighted average interest rate (including the impact of the interest rate swaps referred to above)
and weighted average borrowings under the Credit Facility and prior senior bank credit facility were
6.7 percent and $57.3 .million during fiscal 2005 and 6.3 percent and $88.3 million during fiscal 2004,
respectively.

The Credit Facility contains covenants that, among other things, restrict our ability to incur additional
indebtedness or guarantee obligations, engage in mergers or consolidations, dispose of assets, make
investments, acquisitions, loans or advances, engage in certain transactions with affiliates, conduct certain
corporate activities, create liens, or change the nature of our business. We are restricted in our ability to
prepay or modify the terms of other indebtedness, pay dividends and make other distributions and are
required to comply with a minimum net worth financial covenant. As of January 29, 2005, excess availability,
as defined, was $204.1 million, and at our peak borrowing level during fiscal 2005, the excess availability was
$172.3 million. The Credit Facility also defines various events of default, including cross default provisions,
defaults for any material judgments or a change in control. At January 29, 2005, we are in compliance with
all covenants under the Credit Facility.

Senjor Subordinated Notes. In the first quarter of fiscal 2005, we issued $100 million 7.500 percent
senior subordinated notes (the “Notes”) due 2012. Deferred debt costs recorded at issuance of $2.6 million
are reflected in other long-term assets and are being amortized as interest expense over the term of the
Notes utilizing the effective interest method. We have the option of redeeming the Notes at any time after
March 1, 2008 in accordance with certain call provisions of the related Note indenture. The Notes represent
unsecured obligations that are subordinated to the Credit Facility and are fully and unconditionally
guaranteed by each of our wholly-owned subsidiaries. Of the approximately $97.4 million of net proceeds from
the placement of the Notes, $64.4 million was used to repurchase the remaining 10.375 percent senior
subordinated notes due 2007 in fiscal 2005, and the remainder was used for general corporate purposes. As a
result of the repurchase transactions, we incurred a $4.2 million charge primarily for a cash premium paid to
repurchase some of the 10.375 percent senior subordinated notes and to write-off remaining deferred debt
costs which are reflected in the debt repurchase and share reclassification expenses line item on the
statement of operations. The financing transactions we completed in fiscal 2005 provided us the appropriate
capital structure to enable our long-term growth strategy.

The Note indenture contains covenants that, among other things, restrict our ability to incur additional
indebtedness, make restricted payments, engage in certain transactions with affiliates, create tiens, sell
assets, issue guarantees of and pledges securing indebtedness and require an offer to repurchase the Notes in
the event of a change in control. The indenture defines various events of default, including cross defautt
provisions and defaults for any material judgments. At January 29, 2005, we are in compliance with all
covenants under the Note indenture.

Failure to comply with these restrictions and covenants could result in defaults under our Credit Facility
and/or the Notes indenture. Any default, if not waived, could result in our debt becoming immediately due
and payable.

During fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, we purchased $64.4 million, $58.5 million and $27.1 million,
respectively, in face value of the 10.375 percent senior subordinated notes. The purchases were made at an
aggregate premium of 103.4 percent, 105.4 percent and 104.3 percent, respectively, to par value. During
fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, we recorded pre-tax charges of $4.2 million, $4.3 million and $1.9 million,
respectively, primarily for the cash premium paid and the related write-off of applicable deferred debt costs,
which are reflected in the debt repurchase and share reclassification expenses line item in the statement of
operations.
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Restricted Stock Program

In fiscal 2005, we implemented changes in our long-term compensation for employees, which we believe
will help us continue to attract and retain the best employees, and better align employee interests with those
of our shareholders. Annual grants to employees are now being made in restricted stock awards instead of
stock options. The award of restricted stock offers employees the opportunity to earn shares of our stock over
time, rather than options that provide employees the right to purchase stock at a set price. Stock options
continue to be awarded on a selective basis to new employees and employees who are promoted into certain
management positions.

In fiscal 2005, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved an annuat base award of
restricted stock to certain of our employees that serves as both a retention vehicle and is coupled with
performance awards. The base and performance awards vest 50 percent at the end of three years, with the
remaining 50 percent vesting at the end of the fourth year. The base award grants, which are time-based
awards, amounted to approximately 205,000 restricted shares in fiscal 2005. The performance-based award
provides the potential to receive generally up to three-times that amount in additional shares. The number of
performance award shares ultimately received, if any, will depend on achieving certain earnings performance
goals over the three-year time frame. The expense recognition for the value of restricted shares is based on
the vesting period and an estimate regarding certain performance levels over the three-year measurement
period.

Off-Balance Sheet Transactions

Our liquidity is not currently dependent on the use of off-balance sheet transactions other than letters of
credit and operating leases, which are typical in a retail environment.
Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our future cash outflows resulting from contractual obligations and
commitments as of January 29, 2005:

Payments Due by Period ¥

Less than After

Total 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years 5 years
7.5 percent senior subordinated notes . ............ $ w000 $ — $ — $ —  $100.0
7.5 percent senior subordinated notes interest () . . .. 56.3 7.5 22.5 15.0 11.3
Letters of credit @ ... ... ... ... ... ... ..., 67.9 67.9 — — —
Operating leases ® .. ... .. ... .. .............. 787.6 134.1 236.3 148.4  268.8
Total Contractual Cash Obligations................. $1,011.8  $209.5 $258.8 $163.4  $380.1

() Interest is included as a contractual obligation on the 7.500 percent senior subordinated notes only. The
calculation of interest on the senior bank credit facility is dependent on the average borrowings during the
year and a variable interest rate, which currently approximates 4.25 percent (set at 125 basis points over
LIBOR). We did not include these amounts due to their subjectivity and estimation required. See Ligquidity
and Capital Resources — Sources of Liquidity for further discussion of the senior bank credit facility.

@ Includes commercial letters of credit of $41.3 million and $26.6 million of standby letters of credit.

®) The remaining cash payments include $2.5 million associated with lease obligations for stores closed.

Seasonality and Inflation

Qur business exhibits seasonality, which is typical for most retail companies. Our sales are much stronger
in the second half of the year than the first half of the year. Net earnings are highest during the months of
September through December when sales volumes provide significant operating leverage. Working capital

29



requirements needed to finance our operations fluctuate during the year and reach their highest levels during
the second and third fiscal quarters as we increase our inventory in preparation for our peak selling season.

Summarized below are key line items by quarter from our statements of operations and balance sheets:

Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2004
Q1 G2 Q3 Qw4 Q1 Q2 Qw3 Q4
{Restated) {Restated)
Netsales..............oiiiiann $404.9  $371.0 $448.3  $588.2 | $374.8 $359.2 $447.5  $§552.6
Same-store sates percentage change. ... 6.6% 31%  (0.9%  4.3% 2.6% 2.4% 4.2% 4.5%
Gross margin. ... ... ..o $199.0  $181.9  $214.2  $267.0 | $180.5 $172.6 $215.1 %2424
Gross margin percent to sales ......... 49.1%  49.0%  47.8%  45.4%| 48.2%  48.1%  48.1%  43.9%
Operating profit . ................... $145 $ 39 $147 $548 |$110 $ 0.0 $234 §47.2
Operating profit percent to sales. .. .... 3.6% 1.1% 3.3% 9.3% 2.9% 0.0% 5.2% 8.5%
Net income {loss) .. ... ..ovvuiiiinn, $ 67 § 03 $ 69 $323 [$ 39 § (24) $11.9 § 267
Inventories ................. . 420.1 508.4 530.2 439.7 369.1 471.6 520.3 404.6
Long-termdebt....... .......... . ... 106.6 161.7 200.0 100.0 124.9 190.5 237.4 113.7

We believe that inflation has not had a significant effect on the growth of net sales or on net income
aver the past three years. There can be no assurance, however, that our operating results will not be affected
by inflation in the future.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management strives to report the Company’s financial results in a clear and understandable manner. We
follow generally accepted accounting principles in preparing our consolidated financial statements. The
principles require us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues, expenses and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. We base our estimates on
historical experience and on other assumptions that we believe to be relevant under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from these estimates under different
assumptions and/or conditions. We continually evaluate the information used to make these estimates-as our
business and the economic environment changes. The use of estimates is pervasive throughout our financial
statements, but the accounting policies and estimates we consider most critical are as follows:

Inventory Valuation

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market with cost determined on a first-in, first-out basis.
Inventory valuation methods require certain management estimates and judgments. These include estimates of
shrink, as well as estimates of net realizable value on product designated for clearance, which affects the
ending inventory valuation at cost as well as the gross margins reported for the year.

Our accrual for shrink is based on the actual historical shrink results of our recent store physical
inventories. These estimates are compared to actual results as physical inventory counts are taken and
reconciled to the general ledger. Substantially all of our store physical inventory counts are taken in the first
three quarters of each year and the shrink accrual recorded at January 29, 2005 is based on shrink results of
prior physical inventories. All of our store locations that have been open one year or more are physically
inventoried once a year. We will continue to monitor and adjust our shrink rate estimates based on the
results of store physical inventories and shrink trends.

We estimate our reserve for clearance product based on the consideration of a variety of factors,
including, but not limited to, quantities of slow moving or carryover seasonal merchandise on hand, historical
recovery statistics and future merchandising plans. The accuracy of our estimates can be affected by many
factors, some of which are beyond our control, including changes in economic conditions and consumer
buying trends.
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Vendor Allowances

All vendor consideration received, including cash discounts, volume discounts and co-operative
advertising fees are included as a reduction of cost of sales. Cash discounts and volume discounts are
recognized in cost of sales when the related merchandise is sold. Historically, we have recognized
co-operative advertising fees when received from our vendors. Beginning January 1, 2003, upon the adoption
of EITF Issue 02-16, “Accounting by a Customer (including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received from
a Vendor,” and the execution of new or modifications of existing vendor agreements, we recognize
co-operative advertising fees when the related merchandise is sold. The effect of adopting EITF Issue 02-16
did not have a material impact on our results of operations or financial position.

Gift cards

Proceeds from the sale of gift cards are recorded as a gift card liability and recognized as sales when
redeemed by the holder.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the
assets to future estimated net cash flows to be generated by those assets. If such assets are considered to be
impaired, the impairment recognized is the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the
fair value of the assets.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2005, 2004 and 2003, we performed the required annual impairment test of the carrying amount of goodwill
and determined that no goodwill impairment existed.

Accrued Store Closing Costs

Prior to December 31, 2002, we accrued costs related to stores closed or identified for closing, which
included future rental obligations, carrying costs, and other closing costs. These expenses were accrued when
we had committed to closing or relocating a store and were calculated at the lesser of future rental
obligations remaining under the lease (less estimated sublease rental income) or the estimated lease
termination cost. The determination of the accrual was dependent on our ability to make estimates of costs
to be incurred post-closing and of sublease rental income to be received from subleases. Differences in our
estimates and assumptions could result in an accrual requirement different from the calculated accrual.

In July 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued SFAS No. 146 which requires
companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather than at
the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. SFAS No. 146 also establishes that the liability should
initially be measured and recorded at fair value. SFAS No. 146 replaces EITF Issue No. 94-3 “Liability
Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain
Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities
initiated after December 31, 2002, and we began to account for the costs of store closings under
SFAS No. 146 on that date.

Accrued Expenses

We estimate certain material expenses in an effort to record those expenses in the period incurred. Our
most material estimates relate to compensation, taxes and insurance related expenses, portions of which are
self-insured. Our workers” compensation and general liability insurance accruals are recorded based on
insurance claims processed as well as historical claims experience for claims incurred but not yet reported.
These estimates are based on historical loss development factors. Our employee medical insurance accruals are
recorded based on our medical claims processed as well as historical medical claims experience for claims
incurred but not yet reported. Differences in our estimates and assumptions could result in an accrual
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requirement materially different from the calculated accrual. However, such differences have not been
historically significant for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Operating Leases

Rent expense for our operating leases, which may have escalating rentals over the term of the lease, is
recorded on a straight-line basis over the initial lease term and those renewal periods that are reasonably
assured. The initial lease term includes the “build-out” period of our leases, where no rent payments are
typically due under the terms of the (ease. The difference between rent expense and rent paid is recorded as
deferred rent and is included in the consolidated balance sheets.

Construction allowances received from landlords are recorded as a deferred rent credit and amortized to
rent expense over the initial term of the lease. The Company's statement of cash flows reflects the receipt of
construction allowances as an increase in cash flows from operating activities.

Income Taxes

We do business in various jurisdictions that impose income taxes. Management determines the aggregate
amount of income tax expense to accrue and the amount currently payable based upon the tax statutes of
each jurisdiction. This process involves adjusting income determined using GAAP for items that are treated
differently by the applicable taxing authorities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected on our balance
sheet for temporary differences that will reverse in subsequent years. If different judgments had been made,
our tax expense, assets and liabilities could have been different. Our current tax provision can be affected by
our mix of income and identification or resolution of uncertain tax positions. Because income from different
jurisdictions may be taxed at different rates, the shift in mix during a year or over years can cause the
effective tax rate to change. We base our rate during the year on our best estimate of an annual effective
rate, and update those estimates quarterly. We also regularly evaluate the status and likely outcome of
uncertain tax positions.

As a matter of course, we are regularly audited by federal and state tax authorities. We provide reserves
for potential exposures when we consider it probable that a taxing authority may take a sustainable position
on a matter contrary to our position. We evaluate these reserves, including interest thereon, on a quarterly
basis to insure that they have been appropriately adjusted for events, including audit settlements, that may
impact our ultimate payment for such exposures.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In addition to the accounting pronouncements referenced above in our discussion of critical accounting
policies, the following accounting pronouncements may have an impact on our results of operations or
financial position, as discussed further below.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 123(Revised 2004), Share-Based Payment

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” which is a
revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” SFAS No. 123R replaces SFAS No. 123,
supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,”
and amends SFAS No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows.” SFAS No. 123R requires all share-based payments to
employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements based on
their fair values. SFAS No. 123R amends SFAS No. 95 to require that excess tax benefits be reported as a
financing cash inflow rather than as a reduction of taxes paid.

SFAS No. 123R is effective for public companies at the beginning of the first interim or annual period
beginning after June 15, 2005. Currently, we use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the
value of stock options granted and are evaluating option valuation models, including the Black-Scholes, to
determine which model we will utilize upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R. We plan to adopt SFAS No. 123R
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using the modified-prospective method. We do not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 123R will have a
material impact on the Company’s stock-based compensation expense.

FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46”), “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities.” FIN 46 clarifies the application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated
Financial Statements,” for certain entities which do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance
its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties or in which equity investors
do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest (“variable interest entities”). Variable
interest entities will be required to be consolidated by their primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiary of a
variable interest entity is determined to be the party that absorbs a majority of the entity’s expected losses,
receives a majority of its expected returns, or both, as a result of holding variable interests, which are
ownership, contractual, or other pecuniary interests in an entity. We adopted FIN 46 in our first quarter of
fiscal 2005. The adoption of FIN 46 had no impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements contained in this report that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements
which reflect our current views of future events and financial performance, involve certain risks and
uncertainties. When used herein, the terms “anticipates,” “plans,” “estimates,” “expects,” “believes,” and
similar expressions as they relate to us or future events or conditional verbs such as “will,” “should,” “would,”
“may,” and “could” are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Qur actual results, performance
or achievements may materially differ from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements.
Risks and uncertainties that could cause or contribute to such material differences include, but are not
limited to, general economic conditions, changes in customer demand, changes in trends in the fabric and
craft industry, seasonality, the availability of merchandise, changes in the competitive pricing for products,
longer-term unseasonable weather or wide spread severe weather, the impact of our and our competitors store
openings and closings, fuel and energy costs, changes in tariff and freight rates, consumer debt levels, and
other capital market and geo-political conditions. We caution readers not to place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements. We assume no obligation to update any of the forward-looking statements.

" 1 "o

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to foreign currency fluctuations on merchandise that is sourced internationally and the
impact of interest rate changes on our outstanding borrowings under our credit facility.

We believe foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations do not contain significant market risk due to the
nature of our relationships with our international vendors. All merchandise contracts are denominated in
U.S. dollars and are subject to negotiation prior to our commitment for purchases. As a result, there is not a
direct correlation between merchandise prices and fluctuations in the exchange rate. We sourced
approximately 30 percent of our purchases internationally in fiscal 2005. Qur international purchases are
concentrated in China and other Asian countries.

In the normal course of business, we employ established policies and procedures to manage our exposure
to changes in interest rates. Our objective in managing the exposure to interest rate changes is to limit the
volatility and impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows. This is accomplished through the
debt structure we set in place in early fiscal 2005, which consisted of the fixed rate $100 million Notes and
our variable rate Credit Facility, which is designed to be a working capital facility. We estimate that a one-
percent increase or decrease in interest rates, based on fiscal 2005 average debt levels, would cause an
increase or decrease to interest expense of $0.2 million.

In the past, we also utilized interest rate swaps to achieve our objective of managing our exposure to
interest rate changes. We utilized interest rate swaps to manage net exposure to interest rate changes related
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to our variable rate bank credit facilities. We have a $40.0 million interest rate swap with a fixed LIBOR of
6.72 percent that expires on April 30, 2005.

In accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” we
have reviewed and designated our interest rate swap agreement as a cash flow hedge and recognized the fair
value of our interest rate swap agreement on the balance sheet in accrued expenses. Changes in the fair value
of this agreement is recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) and reclassified into earnings as the
underfying hedged item affects earnings. During fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, unrealized after-tax net gains of
$1.6 million and $1.0 million, respectively, were recorded in other comprehensive income {loss), The fiscal
2002 after-tax net loss included a $1.7 million cumulative transition adjustment, as of the date of adoption
of SFAS No. 133. The hedge ineffectiveness (income) expense for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 was
$0.4 million, $(0.7) million and $(0.3) million, respectively, and is reflected in interest expense.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. (the Company) as
of January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004, and the related consotidated statements of operations, cash flows,
and shareholders’ equity for each of the three years in the period ended January 29, 2005. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. at January 29, 2005 and January 31,
2004, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended January 29, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company restated its 2004 and 2003
financial statements. Also, as discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2004 the
Company changed its method of accounting for stock based compensation.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of
January 29, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 31, 2005
expressed an unqualified opinion on management's assessment and an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting due to the effect of the Company's insufficient controls over the
selection and monitoring of appropriate assumptions and factors affecting its lease accounting practices.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Cleveland, Ohio,
March 31, 2005
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Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

January 29,  January 31,
2005 2004
(Restated)
(Dollars in millions, except
share and per share data)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . ... ... ... . i $ 79.6 $ 17.4
InVeNtOriEs . o e 439.7 404.6
Deferred income taxes .........oooiriiiiii i 21.3 21.9
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ............ ... ... . oL, 22.3 23.5
Total current assels. ...t e 562.9 467.4
Property, equipment and leasehold improvements, net ......................... 238.0 218.4
Goodwill, met. . ... e 27.1 26.5
Other assets. . . ... i e 11.3 7.5
Total @ssets ... o $839.3 $719.8

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable . ... . $167.2 $122.0
ACCTUBT BXPENSES . . oottt et e e 91.6 76.2
Total current liabilities .. ... .o 258.8 198.2
Long-term debt . ... ... e 100.0 113.7
Deferred iNCOME TaXES . ..o\ttt et e e e 27.6 32.9
Lease obligations and other long-term liabilities . .......................... ... 44.0 34.2

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)
Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, no par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized, none issued ........ —_ —
Common stock, stated value $0.05 per share; 150,000,000 authorized, issued
26,321,934 and 25,603,035, respectively ........ ... i il 1.3 1.3
Additional paid-in capital........ ... ... 151.8 129.0
Retained earnings ... ..ot i e e e e 299.6 253.4
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ... ... ... — (1.6)
452.7 . 382.1
Treasury stock, at cost, 3,737,407 shares and 3,774,800 shares, respectively..... (43.8) (41.3)
Total shareholders” equity . ....... ..o e 408.9 340.8
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity .. ...... ... ... ... ... $839.3 $719.8

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Fiscal Year-Ended

January 29, January 31, February 1,
2005 2004 2003
(Restated) (Restated)

{Dollars in millions,

except earnings per share data)

Net sales ............coooiiiiiiiini., L §1,812.4  $1,734.1  $1,682.0
Costof sales . ... ... oo 950.3 923.5 904.5

Gross margin . ..... ... i 862.1 810.6 777.5
Selling, general and administrative expenses ...................... 700.8 664.8 633.2
Store pre-opening and closing costs ........... ... ool 18.5 13.3 6.3
Depreciation and amortization ......... ... ... ... o ool 43.0 39.0 37.9
Stock-based compensation-expense ... o 7.7 6.4 0.2
Debt repurchase and share reclassification expenses ................ 4.2 5.5 1.9

Operating profit .. ... 87.9 81.6 98.0
Interest expense, met ........ ... 13.7 16.5 24.7

Income before income taxes . ............ ..o a 74.2 65.1 73.3
Income tax Provision .........cviiieiiiii i 28.0 25.0 27.9
Net Tncome ... § 46.2 $ 404 § 454
Basic net income per common share ..................ooiiii. $ 209 § 1.8 § 220
Diluted net income per common share ........................... $ 2.02 $ 1.8 § 210

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Fiscal Year-Ended

January 29, January 31, February 1,
2005 2004 2003

(Restated) (Restated)
(Dollars in millions)

Net cash flows from operating activities:
Net income . ... oo e $ 46.2 $ 40.1 $ 45.4

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization .................. ... ... 43.0 39.0 37.9
Deferred income taxes........ ... ... .. .. i (6.3) 4.1 16.0
Stock-based compensation expense ......... . ... . .. 7.7 6.4 0.2
Tax benefit on stock-based compensation plan awards........... 4.9 2.4 3.6
Amortization of deferred financing costs................... ... 2.0 1.5 1.8
Loss on disposal of fixed assets............... ..., 4.4 2.9 2.4
Loss associated with purchase of senior subordinated notes ...... 4.2 4.3 1.9
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in inventories . .......................... - (35.1) (41.5) 5.9
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable ...................... 45.2 (7.9) 6.8
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses ...................... 15.4 0.2 (6.5)
Other, met ... 10.3 0.2 43
Net cash provided by operating activities ...................... ... 141.9 51.7 119.7
Net cash flows used for investing activities:
Capital expenditures ....... ... .. . (67.1) (57.6) (23.2)
Proceeds from sale of equity investment........................ — 6.5 -
Net cash used for investing activities ............................ (67.1) (51.1) (23.2)
Net cash flows used for financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of 7.5% senior subordinated notes, net ..... 97.4 - -
Purchase of 10%/s% senior subordinated notes ................... (66.6) (61.7) (28.3)
Net change in revolving credit facility.......................... (49.3) 9.3 (33.7)
Proceeds from stock-based compensation plans .................. 10.0 6.6 10.0
Other, net ... . . (4.1) (0.6) _(2.4)
Net cash used for financing activities ............................ (12.6) (46.4) _(54.4)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............... 62.2 (45.8) 42.1
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.................... 17.4 63.2 _21.1
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ......................... $79.6 $17.4 $63.2

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest .. oo $ 11.2 $17.5 $ 225
Income taxes, net of refunds ............. ... ... ... ... ... 23.6 8.0 4.9

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Balance, February 2, 2002 (as previously

reported)

Cumulative effect of restatement on prior

years (see Note 2)

Balance, February 2, 2002 (as restated) ...

Net income

Change in fair value of derivatives, net of

$0.2 million tax provisiol

Total comprehensive income

Exercise of stock options . .

Tax benefit on equity compensation . .
Restricted stock awards activity, net

Purchase of common stock
Issuance of treasury shares
Issuance of common stock

Stack Ownership Plan. ..

N

— Associate

Balance, February 1, 2003 (as restated) ...

Net income

Change in fair value of derivatives, net of

$0.6 million tax provisio

Total comprehensive income

Exercise of stock options .

Tax benefit on equity compensation . .
Stock-based compensation..........

Purchase of common stock
Issuance of treasury shares
Issuance of common stock

Stock Ownership Plan. .

Balance, January 31, 2004
Net income

N

— Associate

(as restated) . ..

Change in fair value of derivatives, net of

$1.0 million tax provision .. ..
Total comprehensive income

Exercise of stock options .

Tax benefit on equity compensation . .
Stock-based compensation. . .

Purchase of common stock
Issuance of treasury shares
Issuance of common stock

Stock Ownership Plan. .

Balance, January 29, 2005

— Associate

Common
Net Stock
Common Treasury | Stated
Shares Shares Value

(Shares in thousands)

20,106 3,689 | $1.2

20,106 3,689 1.2
844 — 0.1

(5) - -
(164) 164 -
47 (47) —
251 — —

21,079 3,806 1.3
418 - _
150 — —
(75) 75 -
106 (106) —
150 —

21,828 3,775 1.3
768 (119) —
(36) - -

(119) 119 —
38 (38) -

106 — —
22,585 3,737 | $1.3

40

Accumulated

Additional . her tal
Paid-In Treasury Retained Comprehen-  Shareholders'

Capital Stock Earnings sive Loss Equity

(Dollars in millions)

$ 99.0 $(37.3) $172.9 $(3.0) $232.8
— — 5.0) - 5.0)
99.0 (37.3) 167.9 (3.0) 227.8
- — 45.4 -— 45.4

— —_ - 0.4 0.4
45.8

8.4 — — — 8.5
3.6 - - - 3.6
0.2 — — - 0.2
- (3.4) — — (3.4)
0.6 0.3 — - 0.9
1.5 — — — 1.5
113.3 (40.4) 213.3 (2.6) 284.9
— — 40.1 - 40.1

— - - 1.0 1.0
41.1

40 - - - 40
2.4 — - -— 2.4
6.4 - — — 6.4
- e - - (1.6)
0.7 0.7 — — 1.4
2.2 — — — 2.2
129.0 (41.3) 253.4 (1.6) 340.8
—_ —_ 46.2 - 46.2

— — — 1.6 1.6
47.8

7.0 0.6 — — 7.6
4.9 — — — 4.9
7.7 —_ — —_ 7.7
— (3.3) —_ - (3.3)
0.8 0.2 - - 1.0
2.4 — — — 2.4
$151.8 $(43.8) $299.6 § — $408.9

notes to consolidated financial statements




Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. (the “Company™), an Ohio corporation, is a fabric and craft retailer with 851 retail
stores in 47 states at January 29, 2005. The 737 traditional and 114 superstores feature a variety of
competitively priced merchandise used in sewing, crafting and home decorating projects, including fabrics,
notions, crafts, frames, scrapbooking materials, artificial and dried flowers, home accents, finished seasonal
and home décor merchandise.

The significant accounting policies applied in preparing the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of the Company are summarized below:

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Certain amounts in the fiscal 2004
and 2003 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States ("GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Since actual results may differ from those estimates, the Company
revises its estimates and assumptions, as new information becomes available.

Fiscal Year

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to January 31. Fiscal years consist of 52 weeks,
unless noted otherwise. The fiscal year refers to the year in which the period ends (e.g., fiscal 2005 refers to
the year-ended January 29, 2005).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are all highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market with cost determined on a first-in, first-out basis.
Inventory valuation methods require certain management estimates and judgments, which affect the ending
inventory valuation at cost as well as the gross margins reported for the year. These valuation methods
include estimates of net realizable value on product designated for clearance and estimates of shrink between
periods when the Company conducts store physical inventories to substantiate inventory balances.

The Company’s accrual for shrink is based on the actual historical shrink results of recent store physical
inventories. These estimates are compared to actual results as physical inventory counts are taken and
reconciled to the general ledger. Substantially all of our store physical inventory counts are taken in the first
three quarters of each year and the shrink accrual recorded at January 29, 2005 is based on shrink results of
prior physical inventories. All store locations that have been open one year or longer are physically
inventoried once a year. The Company continually monitors and adjusts the shrink rate estimates based on
the results of store physical inventories and shrink trends.
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Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventory reserves for clearance product are estimated based on the consideration of a variety of factors,
including, but not limited to, quantities of slow moving or carryover seasonal merchandise on hand, historical
recovery statistics and future merchandising plans. The accuracy of the Company’s estimates can be affected
by many factors, some of which are outside of the Company’s control, including changes in economic
conditions and consumer buying trends.

Property, Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Property, equipment and leasehold improvements are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation and amortization is provided over the estimated useful life of the assets principally
by the straight-line method. The major classes of assets and ranges of estimated useful lives are: buildings
from 10 to 40 years; furniture, fixtures and equipment from 2 to 10 years; and leasehold improvements for
the lesser of 10 years or over the remaining life of the lease. Maintenance and repair expenditures are
charged to expense as incurred and improvements and major renewals are capitalized.

Property, equipment and leasehold improvements consists of the following (dollars in millions):
Fiscal Year

2005 2004
{(Restated)
Land and buildings . ... ..ot e $ 58.4 3 54.9
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ....... ... ... .. ... oL 333.9 305.3
Leasehold improvements . ....c.ovvve i L 102.7 923
Construction in progress . ... ... ... i 13.8 8.6
508.8 461.1
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ................. (270.8) _(242.7)
Property, equipment and leasehold improvements, net ............ $ 238.0 §218.4

Software Development

The Company capitalized $2.5 million and $3.7 million in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively, for
internal use software acquired from third parties. The capitalized amounts are included in property, equipment
and leasehold improvements and are being amortized on a straight-line basis over periods ranging from three
to five years beginning at the time the software becomes operational.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price and related costs over the fair value assigned to the net
tangible assets acquired from House of Fabrics, Inc. The goodwill recorded was non-deductible for tax
purposes. A deferred tax adjustment made in fiscal year 2005 related to the House of Fabrics acquisition
increased goodwill by $0.6 miltion.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, 2004, and 2003 the Company performed the required -annual
impairment tests under Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” and determined that no goodwill
impairment existed.
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Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Under SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” long-lived assets,
except for goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets, are reviewed for impairment when circumstances
indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used
is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the assets to future net cash flows estimated by the
Company to be generated by such assets. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.
Assets to be disposed of are recorded at the lower of carrying value or estimated net realizable value.

The carrying values of long-lived assets for stores identified for closure are reduced to their estimated
fair value. See Note 4 — Store Closings for details related to the results of impairment testing performed.

Accrued Store Closing Costs

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.” SFAS No. 146 requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities
when they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. SFAS No. 146
also establishes that the liability should initially be measured and recorded at fair value. SFAS No. 146
replaces EITF Issue No. 94-3 “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs
to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 is to be applied
prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. Under EITF Issue 94-3, a
liability for an exit cost was recognized at the date of our commitment to an exit plan.

The Company follows SFAS No. 146 to account for costs related to store closings after December 31,
2002. Prior to December 31, 2002, the Company followed EITF Issue 94-3 and accrued for costs of store
closings, including future rental obligations, carrying costs and other closing costs when the Company
committed to closing or relocating a store. The determination of the accrual was dependent on the Company's
ability to make estimates of costs to be incurred post-closing. Future rental obligations were calculated at the
lesser of contractual obligations remaining under the lease (less estimated sublease rental income) or the
estimated lease termination cost. Differences in estimates and assumptions could result in an accrual
requirement materially different from the calculated accrual. See Note 4 — Store Closings.

Accrued Expenses

Certain material expenses are estimated to enable recording of those expenses in the period incurred.
The most material estimates relate to compensation, taxes and insurance related expenses, portions of which
the Company is self-insured for. Workers’ compensation and general liability insurance accruals are recorded
based on insurance claims processed as well as historical claims experience for claims incurred, but not yet
reported. These estimates are based on historical loss development factors. Employee medical insurance
accruals are recorded based on medical claims processed as well as historical medical claims experience for
claims incurred but not yet reported. Differences in the Company’s estimates and assumptions could resulf in
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Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

an accrual requirement materially different from the calculated accrual. Accrued expenses consists of the
following (dollars in millions):
Fiscal Year

2005 2004
Accrued £BXES ... e $29.6 $21.5
Accrued compensation ... 0oL e 215 16.8
ACCrUed INSUTANCE - . ..ttt e et 15.7 12.1
Other accrued eXPensSEs ... .. ....uiuuunre e 24.8 25.8
$91.6  $76.2

H

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is cash or a contract that imposes an obligation to deliver, or conveys a right to
receive cash or another financial instrument. The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents and accounts
payable are considered to be representative of fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.
The price of the 7.500 percent senior subordinated notes (the “Notes”) at January 29, 2005 in the high yield
debt market was 100.4 percent to par value. Accordingly, the fair value of the Notes was $100.4 million
versus their carrying value of $100 million.

In the normal course of business, the Company employs established policies and procedures to manage
exposure to changes in interest rates. The Company’s objective in managing the exposure to interest rate
changes is to limit the volatility and impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows. This is
accomplished through the debt structure set in place in early fiscal 2005, which consisted of the fixed rate
Notes and the variable rate Credit Facility, which is designed to be a working capital facility. In the past, the
Company also utilized interest rate swaps to achieve this objective. The Company utilized interest rate swaps
to manage net exposure to interest rate changes related to the Company’s variable rate bank credit facilities.
The interest rate swap agreements required the Company to pay a fixed interest rate while receiving a floating
interest rate based on London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR"). The Company does not enter into financial
instruments for trading purposes. The Company has a $40.0 million interest rate swap with a fixed LIBOR rate
of 6.72 percent that expires on April 30, 2005.

The Company reviewed and designated its interest rate swap agreement as a cash flow hedge and
recognized the fair value of its interest rate swap agreement on the balance sheet in accrued expenses, in
accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended.
Changes in the fair value of this agreement are recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) and reclassified
into earnings as the underlying hedged item affects earnings, During fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, unrealized
after-tax net gains of $1.6 million and $1.0 million, respectively, were recorded in other comprehensive
income (loss). The hedge ineffectiveness (income) expense for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $0.4 million,
$(0.7) million and $(0.3) million, respectively, and is reflected in interest expense.

Income Taxes

The Company does business in various jurisdictions that impose income taxes. The aggregate amount of
income tax expense to accrue and the amount currently payable is based upon the tax statutes of each
jurisdiction, pursuant to the asset and liability method. This process involves adjusting income determined
using GAAP for items that are treated differently by the applicable taxing authorities. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are reflected on the balance sheet for temporary differences that will reverse in subsequent years.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income
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in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in the tax rate is recognized in income or expense in the
period that the change is effective. The current tax provision can be affected by the mix of income and
identification or resolution of uncertain tax positions. Because income from different jurisdictions may be
taxed at different rates, the shift in mix during a year or over years can cause the effective tax rate to
change. The rate is based on the best estimate of an annual effective rate, and those estimates are updated
quarterly, The Company also regularly evaluates the status and likely outcome of uncertain tax positions.

As a matter of course, the Company is reqularly audited by federal, state and local tax authorities.
Reserves are provided for potential exposures when it is considered probable that a taxing authority may take
a sustainable position on a matter contrary to the Company’s position. The Company evaluates these reserves,
including interest thereon, on a quarterly basis to insure that they have been appropriately adjusted for
events, including audit settlements, that may impact the ultimate payment for such exposure.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue at the time of sale of merchandise to its customers in compliance with
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements.” The Company allows for
merchandise to be returned under most circumstances, however, the Company currently does not provide a
reserve as the amounts of returns have not historically had a material impact on the financial statements.

The Company recognizes the sale for layaway and custom orders when the product is delivered to the
customer and any remaining balance due from the customer is collected. Deposits received for layaway and
custom orders are deferred as a liability until the related product is delivered to the customer.

Proceeds from the sale of gift cards are recorded as gift card liability and recognized as revenue when
redeemed by the holder.

Cost of Sales

Inbound freight and duties related to import purchases and internal transfer costs are considered to be
direct costs of the Company’s merchandise and accordingly are recognized when the related merchandise is
sold as cost of sales. Purchasing and receiving costs, warehousing costs and other costs of the Company's
distribution network are considered to be period costs not directly attributable to the value of merchandise
and accordingly are expensed as incurred as selling, general and administrative expenses. Distribution network
costs of $58.5 million, $51.5 million and $43.4 million were included in selling, general and administrative
expenses for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

All vendor consideration, including cash discounts, volume discounts and co-operative advertising fees
are included as a reduction of cost of sales. Cash discounts and volume discounts are recognized in cost of
sales when the related merchandise is sold. Historically, the Company recognized co-operative advertising fees
when received from its vendors. Beginning January 1, 2003, upon the adoption of Emerging Issues Task Force
(“ELTF") Issue 02-16, “Accounting by a Customer (including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received
from a Vendor,” and the execution of new or modifications of existing vendor agreements, the Company
recognizes co-operative advertising fees when the related merchandise is sold. The effect of adopting the EITF
did not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial position. Historically,
vendor consideration has not had a significant impact to the trend of cost of sales or gross margin.

45




Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Operating Leases

 Rent expense for operating leases, which may have escalating rentals over the term of the lease, is
recorded on a straight-line basis over the initial lease term and those renewal periods that are reasonably
assured. The initial lease term includes the “build-out” period of leases, where no rent payments are typically
due under the terms of the lease. The difference between rent expense and rent paid is recorded as deferred
rent and is included in the consolidated balance sheets.

Construction allowances received from landlords are recorded as a deferred rent credit and amortized to
rent expense over the initial term of the lease. The Company’s statement of cash flows reflects the receipt of
construction allowances as an increase in cash flows from operating activities.

Store Pre-Opening Costs

Store pre-opening costs are expensed as incurred and relate to the costs incurred prior to a new store
opening, which includes the hiring and training costs for new employees, processing costs of initial
merchandise and rental expense for the period prior to the store opening for business. Store pre-opening
costs were $9.6 million, $9.6 million and $4.8 million in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses production costs of advertising the first time the advertising takes place.
Advertising expense was $50.1 million, $47.7 million and $39.7 million for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per
Share.” Basic earnings per common share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share include the effect of the assumed
exercise of dilutive stock-based awards under the treasury stock method. Basic and diluted earnings per share
are as follows:

Fiscal Year-Ended

2005 2004 2003
(Restated) (Restated)
{Dollars in millions, except per share data)
Net income .. ...t e $ 46.2 $ 40.1 $ 45.4
Weighted average shares (shares in thousands):
BasiC .ot 22,155 21,372 20,682
Incremental shares from assumed exercise of stock
OptiONS .. 624 564 950
Incremental restricted shares........................ 108 67 —
Dilted . . e e 22,887 22,003 21,632
Basic net income per commeon share ... ... ... ... § 2.09 $ 1.88 § 2.20
Diluted net income per common share .................... § 2.02 § 1.8 $ 210

For fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, there were 66,000 stock options, 175,000 stock options and
137,000 stock options, respectively, which could potentially dilute earnings per share in the future, that were
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not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because to do so would have been anti-
dilutive.

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective February 2, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” Under the modified prospective method of adoption selected by
the Company under the provisions of SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and
Disclosure, an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123,” compensation cost recognized in fiscal year 2004 was
the same as that which would have been recognized had the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 been
applied from its original effective date.

Prior to fiscal 2004, the Company accounted for stock-based awards under the recognition and
measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees,” and related Interpretations. Therefore, no stock-based compensation expense for stock options
is reflected in fiscal 2003 net income, as all options granted had an exercise price equal to the market value
of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

The following table shows the expense recognized by the Company for stock-based compensation in fiscal
2005 and 2004 under SFAS No. 123 and SFAS No. 148, and in fiscal 2003 under APB No. 25.

Fiscal Year-Ended
2005 2004 2003

Stock option compensation expense. ...l $3.4 $5.7 $—
Restricted stock award amortization........... .. ... ... .. . 4.3 0.7 0.2

7.7 864 302

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the fair value based
method had been applied to all outstanding and unvested awards in each fiscal year (dollars in millions,
except per share data):

Fiscal Year-Ended

2005 2004 2003
(Restated) (Restated)
Net income as reported ......... .. .. ittt $46.2 $40.1 $45.4
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in reported net
income, netof tax ...... ... ... 4.8 3.9 0.1
Less: Stock-based compensation determined under the fair value
method, net of tax....... e _(4.8) (3.9 _(2.3)
Pro forma netincome........ .. ... . i $46.2 $40.1 $43.2
Basic income per common share:
Asreported ... .. $2.09 $1.88 $2.20
Pro forma. . ..o e $2.09 $1.88 $2.09
Diluted income per common share;
Asreported .. ... ... $2.02 $1.82 $2.10
Pro forma. . ..o $2.02 $1.82 $2.00
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The fair values of the options granted under the stock plans were determined at the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Company does not pay dividends, so no dividend rate assumption
was made. The significant assumptions used to calculate the fair value of the option grants were as follows:

Fiscal Year-Ended

2005 2004 2003
Weighted average fair value of options granted ....... $ 14,16 § 2.61 % 9.88
Expected volatility of underlying stock .............. 594 {0 .653 570 to .660 466 10 555
Risk-free interest rates ............ ... ... .. ... 2.4% to 3.7% 2.4% to 3.6% 3.0% to 4.9%
Expected life ............... ... .o 4 years 4-5.5 years 5-6 years
Expected life — Employee Stock Purchase Program . ... 6 months 6 months 6 months

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In addition to the accounting pronouncements referenced above, the following accounting pronounce-
ments may have an impact on our results of operations or financial position, as discussed further below.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 123(Revised 2004), Share-Based Payment

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” which is a
revision of SFAS No. 123, SFAS No. 123R replaces SFAS No. 123, supersedes APB No. 25 and amends
SFAS No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows.” SFAS No. 123R requires all share-based payments to employees,
including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair
values. SFAS No. 123R amends SFAS No. 95 to require that excess tax benefits be reported as a financing cash
inflow rather than as a reduction of taxes paid.

SFAS No. 123R is effective for public companies at the beginning of the first interim or annual period
beginning after June 15, 2005. Currently, the Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to
estimate the value of stock options granted and is evaluating option valuation models, including the Black-
Scholes, to determine which model the Company will utilize upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R. The Company
plans to adopt SFAS No. 123R using the modified-prospective method. The Company does not anticipate that
the adoption of SFAS No. 123R will have a material impact on the Company's stock-based compensation
expense.

FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46”), “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities.” FIN 46 clarifies the application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated
Financial Statements,” for certain entities which do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance
its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties or in which equity investors
do not have the characteristics of a contralling financial interest (“variable interest entities”). Variabte
interest entities will be required to be consolidated by their primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiary of a
variable interest entity is determined to be the party that absorbs a majority of the entity's expected losses,
receives a majority of its expected returns, or both, as a result of holding variable interests, which are
ownership, contractual, or other pecuniary interests in an entity. The Company adopted FIN 46 during the
first quarter of fiscal 2005. The adoption of FIN 46 had no impact on the Company's consolidated financial
statements.
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On February 7, 2005, the Office of the Chief Accountant of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) issued a letter to the Center for Public Company Audit Firms of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, which clarified existing generally accepted accounting principles applicable to leases and
{easehold improvements. After conducting an internal review of its lease accounting procedures, the Company
determined that its historical accounting for leases was not consistent with the accounting principles
described in the SEC's letter. The Company has restated its financial statements for prior periods to correct
these errors.

The Company has reviewed its property lease portfolio and has recognized the effect of pre-opening “rent
holidays” over the related lease terms. Tenant allowances have been reclassified from a contra asset in net
property and equipment to other long-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Tenant allowances
have also been reclassified from a reduction of depreciation and amortization expense to a reduction of rent
expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and from a reduction of capital expenditures to an
increase in cash provided by operating activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Retained earnings at the beginning of fiscal year 2003 have been adjusted by $5.0 million for the after-
tax impacts of earlier periods. ‘

The following is a summary of the impact of the restatement on the Company's consolidated balance
sheet at January 31, 2004 and the consolidated statements of operations and cash flows for the years ended
January 31, 2004 and February 1, 2003 (in millions, except per share data):

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Fiscal Year-Ended January 31, 2004

Before
Restatement  Adjustments  As Restated

Property, equipment and leasehold improvements, net ..... $203.2 $15.2 $218.4
Total Assets .. ... . i 707.7 12.1 719.8
Deferred income taxes, net .................. . ... 14.4 (3.4) 11.0
Other long-term liabilities ................. ... ... ..., 10.3 23.9 34.2
Retained @armings .. ..............oeeeeenneneennnn... 258.8 (5.4) 253.4
Total shareholders equity .............. ... ... ... 346.2 (5.4) 340.8
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ................. $707.7 $12.1 $719.8

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Fiscal Year-Ended January 31, 2004

Before
Restatement  Adjustments  As Restated

Selling, general and administrative expenses ............. $667.8 $ (3.0) $664.8
Store pre-opening and closing costs .................... 10.9 2.4 13.3
Depreciation and amortization......................... 37.0 2.0 39.0
Operating profit. ........... ... .. 83.0 (1.4) 81.6
Net TNCOMe ...\t $ 41.0 $ (0.9) $ 40.1
Basic net income per common share .............. ... .. $ 1.92 $(0.04) $ 1.88
Diluted net income per common share .................. $ 1.86 $(0.04) $ 1.82
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Fiscal Year-Ended February 1, 2003

Before
Restatement  Adjustments  As R d
“Selling, general and administrative expenses ............. $636.4 $(3.2) $633.2
Store pre-opening and closing costs .................... 5.9 0.4 6.3
Depreciation and amortization......................... 35.9 2.0 37.9
Operating profit. ... ... ... 97.2 0.8 98.0
Netincome ...t $ 44.9 $ 0.5 $ 45.4
Basic net income per common share .................... $ 2.17 $0.03 $ 2.20
Diluted net income per common share .................. $ 2.08 $0.02 $ 2.10

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Fiscal Year-Ended January 31, 2004

Before
Restatement  Adjustments  As Restated
Net cash provided by operating activities................ $ 46.3 $ 5.4 $51.7
Net cash used for investing activities................... $(45.7) $(5.4) $(51.1)
Fiscal Year-Ended February 1, 2003
Net cash provided by operating activities................ $119.2 $0.5 $119.7

Net cash used for investing activities ................... $(22.7) $(0.5) $(23.2)

Note 3 — Share Reclassification

On November 4, 2003, the Company announced that shareholders approved the reclassification of its
Class A and Class B common shares into a single class of stock. Shareholders also approved certain other
governance proposals. On November 5, 2003, shares of the single class of stock began trading on the New
York Stock Exchange, under the symbol “JAS.”

Under the reclassification, shares of the Company’s Class B common shares, which did not have voting
rights other than as required by law, were amended to have one vote per share and were re-designated as the
Company’s “common shares.” Each of the Company’s Class A common shares, which had one vote per share,
were reclassified into 1,15 common shares. This resulted in approximately 1.6 million incremental common
shares being issued at the time of the reclassification, increasing the number of common shares outstanding
by approximately 8 percent.

Shares outstanding, stock options, as well as average basic and diluted shares outstanding used to
calculate earnings per share, have been retroactively restated to reflect the impact of the increased shares
outstanding as a result of the share reclassification as of the beginning of all periods presented.

Note 4 — Store Closings

The charges to the statement of operations for the three fiscal years ended January 29, 2005 related to
store closings are summarized below, and include charges for store closings related to the superstore growth
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strategy and normal operating activity. These charges are included in the line item “Store pre-opening and
closing costs” in the statements of operations included in the consolidated financial statements.
Fiscal Year-Ended
2005 2004 2003
T (Restated) (Restated)
(Dollars in millions)

Store Closing Charges:

Non-cancelable lease obligations.............. ... . ... .... $1.4 $(0.1) $(5.9)

Asset impairment ... .. 2.5 2.1 6.7

Othercosts ............... e SR 5.0 1.7 0.7
Total .....o..n. T e oo, $89 - $37 - $15

Non-cancelable lease obligations for fiscal 2003 include the lesser of the estimated buyout or remaining
lease obligations of the stores to be closed. Estimated lease obligations were reduced by anticipated sublease
rental income. As discussed in Note 1, in fiscal 2005 and 2004, these costs are accounted for in accordance
with SFAS No. 146, which requires certain lease costs to be expensed as incurred.

Asset impairments include write-downs of fixed assets to estimated fair value for stores closed, or
scheduled to be closed, where impairment exists. The asset impairment represents the difference between the
asset carrying value and the future net discounted cash flows estimated by the Company to be generated by
those assets.

Other costs represent other miscellaneous store closing costs, including among other things, costs related
to third-party inventory liquidation and fixtures, signage and register removal.
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Summarized below is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending store closing reserve balances for the

three fiscal years ended January 29, 2005:
Non-cancelable

Lease Asset Other
Obligations Impairments Costs Total
) (Doltars in millions)
Balance at February 2, 2002 ..................... $11.2 $ — $1.2  $12.4
Amounts charged to income ...... ... ... ... ... (5.9) 6.7 0.7 1.5
Utilization:
Cash. ... (1.8) — 0.9 (2.7)
o Nom-Cash.......... ...l — (6.7) (0.1) (6.8
" Balance at February 1, 2003 V... . ... L. 3.5 — 0.9 4.4
Amounts charged to income .......... ... . ... .. (0.1) 2.1 1.7 3.7
Utilization:
Cash. .. (1.6) — (1.3) (2.9)
Non-Cash ... — 21y  (0.3) _(2.4)
Balance at January 31, 2004 ™ ..o L. 1.8 — 1.0 2.8
Amounts charged to income ....... ... ... ... 1.4 2.5 5.0 8.9
Utilization:
Cash. o (2.7) — (5.2) (7.9)
Non-Cash....... ... ... ... . oo — (2.5) - (2.5)
Balance at January 29, 2005 . .................... $ 0.5 § — $08 §13

) Fiscal years 2004 and 2003 have been restated to refiect changes discussed in Note 2 — Restatement of
Prior Financial Information.

Note 5 — Income Taxes

The significant components of the income tax provision are as follows (dollars in millions):
Fiscal Year-Ended
2005 2004 2003
(Restated) (Restated)

Current:
Federal. .ot e $30.7 $18.7 $ 9.0
Stateand local . ... i e 3.6 2.2 2.9
34.3 20.9 11.9
Deferred . ... ..o e (6.3) 4.1 16.0
Income tax provision ....... ... $28.0 $25.0 $27.9
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The reconciliation of income tax at the statutory rate to the income tax provision is as follows:

Fiscal Year-Ended

2005 2004 2003
(Restated) (Restated)
Federal income tax at the statutoryrate........................ $26.0 $22.8 $25.7
Effect of:
State and local taxes ............ .. il 2.4 1.8 2.9
Other, met ... (0.4) 0.4 _(0.7)
Income tax Provision ...ttt $28.0 $25.0 $27.9

The significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Asset/(Liability)
2005 2004
(Restated)
Current
Deferred tax assets:

INVentory TteMS . . .ottt e $17.4  $ 144

Lease obligations ........ ... . . . 0.9 4.8

Employee benefits . ... .. 0.8 1.2

Other o 22 29

21.3 23.3
Deferred tax liabilities:

Basis difference in net assets acquired ................. ... ... — _(1.4)
Net current deferred tax asset ............... ... .. .. ... $213 $219
Non-current
Deferred tax assets:

Lease Obligations .. .......oiitriii e $ 16.9 $ 12.2

Equity investment .. ... .. . e 2.5 2.5

Other o 4.5 1.9

Valuation allowance ........... ... i _(2.5) _(2.5)

21.4 14.1
Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation ... ... (48.5) (46.7)

Basis difference in net assets acquired .................... ..., (0.7) (0.7)

Other .. . _ 02 04

(49,00 _(41.0)
Net non-current deferred tax Hability ............ .. ... ... ... L. $(27.6)  $(32.9)

The Company has recorded a valuation allowance for equity losses on a minority investment, which may
not be realizable.
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Long-term debt consists of the following (dollars in miltions):.
Fiscal Year

2005 2004
Senior bank credit facility ......... ... $ — 8 —
Prior senfor bank credit facility .. ... .o — 49.3
7.500 percent senior subordinated notes ............. .. ... .. ool 100.0 —
10.375 percent senior subordinated notes ............. . . e — 64.4
Total Long-term debt ... . ..o i $100.0  $113.7

Secured Credit Facilities

In April 2004, the Company amended and extended the expiration date of the senior bank credit facility
originally entered into in April 2001 and led by Bank of America Retail Finance, Inc. (formerly Fleet Retail
Group, Inc.). The senior bank credit facility, as amended (the “Credit Facility”), is a $350 million revolver that
expires April 30, 2009. The.prior senior bank credit facility provided for a $325 million revolver and a
$40 million term loan, and would have expired in April 2005. The Credit Facility is secured by a first priority
perfected security interest in the Company's inventory, accounts receivable, property and other assets and is
fully and unconditionally guaranteed by each of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries. Interest on
borrowings under the Credit Facility is calculated at the bank’s base rate or London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR") plus 1.25 percent to 2.00 percent, depending on the level of excess availability (as defined in the
credit agreement) that is maintained. At January 29, 2005, the Company’s interest on borrowings under the
Credit Facility, had there been outstanding borrowings, would have been LIBOR plus 1.25 percent. The Credit
Facitity contains a sub-limit for letters of credit of $200 million. Deferred financing costs related to the
amendment of $1.6 million, as well as the unamortized portion of the deferred financing costs related to the
original financing, are being amortized over the term of the Credit Facility.

As of January 29, 2005, the Company had $67.9 million of letters of credit outstanding under the Credit
Facility. There were no outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility at January 29, 2005.

The Company's weighted average interest rate (including the impact of the $40 million interest rate swap
expiring in April 2005, discussed under Financial Instruments in Note 1) and weighted average borrowings
under the Credit Facility and prior senior bank credit facility were 6.7 percent and $57.3 million during fiscal
2005 and 6.3 percent and $88.3 million during fiscal 2004.

The Credit Facility contains covenants that, among other things, restrict the Company's ability to incur
additional indebtedness or guarantee obligations, engage in mergers or consolidations, dispose of assets,
make investments, acquisitions, loans or advances, engage in certain transactions with affiliates, conduct
certain corporate activities, create liens, or change the nature of its business. The Company is restricted in its

* ability to prepay or modify the terms of other indebtedness, pay dividends and make other distributions when
excess availability, as defined, falls below certain levels. Further, the Company is required to comply with a
minimum net worth financial covenant if excess availability, as defined, is less than $35 million at any time.
As of January 29, 2005, excess availability was $204.1 million, and at the Company’s peak borrowing level
during fiscal 2005, the excess availability was $172.3 million. The Credit Facility also defines various events
of default, including cross default provisions, defaults for any material judgments or a change in control. At
January 29, 2005, the Company is in compliance with all covenants under the Credit Facility.

The fair value of the Company’s Credit Facility and prior senior bank credit facility approximated carrying
value at January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004.
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Senior Subordinated Notes

On February 26, 2004, the Company issued $100 million 7.500 percent senior subordinated notes (the
“Notes”) due 2012. Interest on the Notes is payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year. Deferred debt
costs recorded at issuance of $2.6 million are reflected in other long-term assets and are being amortized as
interest expense over the term of the Notes utilizing the effective interest method. The Company has the
option of redeeming the Notes at any time after March 1, 2008 in accordance with certain call provisions of
the related Note indenture. The Notes represent unsecured obligations that are subordinated to the Credit
Facility and are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by each of the Company's wholly-owned subsidiaries. Net
proceeds from the placement of approximately $97.4 million were used to repurchase the balance of the
10.375 percent senior subordinated notes that remained outstanding and for general corporate purposes.

The Note indenture contains covenants that, among other things, restrict the Company’s ability to incur
additional indebtedness, make restricted payments, engage in certain transactions with affiliates, create liens,
sell assets, issue guarantees of and ptedges securing indebtedness and require an offer to repurchase the
Notes in the event of a change in control. The indenture defines various events of default, including cross
default provisions and defaults for any material judgments. Failure to comply with these restrictions and
covenants could result in defaults under the Company’s Credit Facility and/or Note indenture. Any default, if
not waived, could result in the Company’s debt becoming immediately due and payable. At January 29, 2005,
the Company is in compliance with all covenants under its Note indenture.

During fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company purchased $64.4 million, $58.5 million and
$27.1 million, respectively, in face value of the 10.375 percent senior subordinated notes. The Company
recorded pre-tax charges of $4.2 million, $4.3 million and $1.9 million, in fiscat years 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, primarily for the cash premium paid and the related write-off of applicable deferred debt costs,
which are reflected in the debt repurchase and share reclassification expenses line item on the statement of
operations.

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt for the next five years are: 2006 — $0.0; 2007 — $0.0; 2008 —
$0.0; 2009 — $0.0; 2010 — $0.0 and thereafter — $100.0.

Note 7 — Capital Stock
Shareholders’ Rights Plan

On November 4, 2003, the Company amended and restated its Shareholders’ Rights Plan (the “Rights
Plan”). Under the Rights Plan, as amended and restated, one right is issued for each common share
outstanding. The rights are exercisable only if a person or group buys or announces a tender offer for
15 percent or more of the outstanding common shares as defined in the Rights Plan. When exercisable, each
right initially entitles a holder of common shares to purchase one common share for $52.17, or under certain
circumstances, one common share for $0.43. The rights, which do not have voting privileges, expire at the
close of business on October 31, 2010, but may be redeemed by the Board of Directors prior to that time,
under certain circumstances, for $0.005 per right. Until the rights become exercisable, they have no effect on
earnings per share.

Right to Acquire Shares

The Company is a party to an agreement with certain members of the two founding families of the
Company, whereby the Company has a right of first refusal to acquire, at market prices, common shares
disposed of by either of the families. Approximately 4.2 million shares are subject to this agreement as of
January 29, 2005.
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Note 8 — Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has various stock-based compensation plans that it utilizes as long-term compensation for
its board of directors, executive officers, senfor management and other key employees. The Company issues
stock under these various stock-award compensation plans and uses treasury shares to fund the Company’s
match under the 401(k) savings plan. As discussed in Note 1, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 in the first
quarter of fiscal 2004 under the modified-prospective method under SFAS No. 148 and began expensing the
costs of stock options in its statements of operations in fiscal 2004. For restricted stock awards, stock-based
compensation expense resulting from the issuance of restricted shares is recognized over the vesting period of
the award (typicalty three to five years).

Summarized below are the various plans used by the Company in administering its stock-based
compensation award programs.
Plan Overview.

1998 Incentive Compensation Plan (the “1998 Plan”)  Allows for the grant of stock options, restricted
stock, and stock equivalent units to employees and
non-employee directors. It also allows the operation
of an employee stock purchase program and a
deferred stock program for non-employee directors.

1996 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors Previously used to award stock options to non-

(the “Directors Stock Option Plan”) ............. employee directors. The plan is no longer used to
grant stock options.

1994 Executive Incentive Plan (the “Executive Plan”)  Previously used to award restricted stock awards to
executive officers, senior management and other key
employees. This plan terminated on January 31,
2004. The termination of the plan does not affect
shares that are currently outstanding under the plan.

N At January 29, 2005, 132,455 restricted shares
remained outstanding under the Executive Plan.

1990 Employee Stock Option and Stock Appreciation Previously used to award stock options to officers

Rights Plan (the “1990 Plan”y ................. and key employees. This plan terminated on
March 14, 2000. The termination of the plan does
not affect shares that are currently outstanding
under the plan.

1998 Plan
Stock Options

The employee and non-employee director stock options granted under the 1998 Plan generatly become
exercisable to the extent of one-fourth of the optioned shares for each full year of continuous employment or
service following the date of grant and generally expire seven to ten years after the date of the grant. Stock
options granted under the Plan may become exercisable or expire under different terms as approved by the,
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.

Restricted Stock Awards

The vesting periods for the restricted shares granted under the 1998 Plan are up to five years for
employee restricted shares and up to six years for non-employee director restricted shares. All restrictions on
such restricted shares terminate if the grantee remains in the continuous service of the Company throughout
the vesting period. In fiscal 2005, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved an annual
base award of restricted stock to certain of the Company’s employees that serves as both a retention vehicle
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and is coupled with performance awards. The base and performance awards vest 50 percent at the end of
three years, with the remaining 50 percent vesting at the end of the fourth year. The base award grants,
which are time-based awards, amounted to approximately 205,000 restricted shares for fiscal 2005. The
performance-based award provides the potential to receive generally up to three times that amount in
additional shares. The number of performance award shares ultimately received, if any, will depend on
achieving certain net income performance criteria that are measured at the end of the third year. The Shares
Available to Grant table reflects both the fiscal 2005 restricted stock base award grant and the performance
award assuming superior level is achieved. The expense recognition for the value of restricted shares is based
on the vesting period and an estimate regarding certain performance levels over the three-year measurement
period.

Shares Available to Grant

The total number of shares available for awards, other than those granted under the employee stock
purchase program, are limited in any fiscal year to (1) four percent of the number of shares outstanding at
the beginning of the fiscal year, plus (2) for each of the two prior fiscal years, the excess of four percent of
the number of shares outstanding at the beginning of each such fiscal year over the number of share awards
actually granted in each such fiscal year.

The following table summarizes award activity for the three fiscal years and the number of shares
available for future awards under the 1998 Plan as of January 29, 2005:

Stock Restricted
Options Stock Total
Available at February 2, 2002........... ... ... 618,056
Fiscal year 2003 incremental available................... 804,236
Granted . .. ...t (204,125) —  (204,125)
Cancellations ....... ... i 163,189 3,450 166,639
Available at February 1, 2003 .............. .. ... ... ...l 1,384,806
Fiscal year 2004 incremental available................... 843,162
Granted . . .. ..ot (806,387)  (11,500)  (817,887)
Cancellations ......... ... 124,313 3,450 127,763
Available at February 1, 2004 ... ......... ... . ... .. ..., 1,537,844
Fiscal year 2005 incremental available................... 255,073
Granted — Time-Based Awards ......................... (142,200) (224,300)  (366,500)
Granted — Performance-Based Awards . .................. — (616,350) (616,350)
Cancellations ....... ... .. i i 156,430 121,500 277,930
Available at January 29, 2005 .......... ... .. ... 1,087,997

Employee Stock Purchase Program

The employee stock purchase program (the Associate Stock Ownership Plan or “ASOP”) was established in
April 1999, and enables employees to subscribe to purchase shares of common stock on offering dates at six-
month intervals, at a purchase price equal to the lesser of 85 percent of the fair market value of the common
stock on the first or {ast day of the offering period. The ASOP meets the requirements of Section 423 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986. The total number of shares subject to stock purchase rights granted in any
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fiscal year for the ASOP may not exceed 1,000,000 shares. During fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, stock purchase
rights of 106,548 shares, 149,791 shares and 251,016 shares, respectively, were granted and exercised under
the ASOP. The stock-based compensation expense was not significant for all the years presented.

Non-Employee Directors Deferred Stock Program

The Company maintains a deferred stock program for non-employee directors. This program allows non-
employee directors to elect to convert the retainer and meeting fee portion of their cash compensation into
deferred stack units. Under this feature, non-employee directors make an irrevocable election prior to the
Company's annual shareholders” meeting whereby they can elect to convert a percentage (0 percent to
100 percent in 25 percent increments) of their cash compensation for the following year to deferred stock
units. The conversion of cash compensation to deferred stock units is based on the closing market price of
the Company’s common shares on the date the cash compensation would have been payable if it were paid in
cash. These deferred stock units are credited to an account of each non-employee director, although no stock
is issued until the earlier of an elected distribution date, as selected by the non-employee director, or
retirement. During fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, these were 1,105, 864 and 1,139 deferred stock units,
respectively, deferred under the deferred stock program.

Award Activity

Summarized below are stock option and restricted stock award activity for the 1998 Plan, the 1990 Plan,
the Directors Stock Option Plan and the Executive Plan (collectively the “Plans”):

Stock Options

The fotlowing is a summary of the Company’s stock option activity under the Plans:

2005 2004 2003
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding, beginning of
year................. 3,077,917 $12.42 2,881,419 $10.37 3,817,757 $ 9.90
Granted .............. 142,200 27.89 806,387 17.97 204,125 18.34
Exercised............. (767,773) 8.94 (478,973) 9.30 (B44,884) 10.10
Cancelled ............ 158,547) 14,20 (130,916) 12.67 (295,579) - 10.49

Outstanding, end of year.. 2,293,797  $14.09 3,077,917  $12.42 2,881,419  $10.37

Exercisable, end of year... 1,591,632  $11.54 1,490,091  $11.49 1,174,103  $12.77
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The following table summarizes the status of stock options outstanding and exercisable at January 29,
2005:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted

Weighted Average Weighted
Range of Average Remaining Average
Number Exercise Exercise Contractual Number Exercise

Qutstanding Prices Price Life Exercisable Price
817,863 $ 2.40 to $7.75 $ 6.89 5.0 years 804,984 $ 6.94
873,660 7.99 to 16.80 14.80 4.3 years 493,134 13.31
602,274 18.19 to 29.38 22.85 4.9 years 293,514 21.18
2,293,797 $2.40 to $29.38 $14.09 4.7 years 1,591,632 $11.54

Restricted Stock — Time-Based Awards

As of January 29, 2005, 358,780 shares of restricted stock were outstanding in which the restrictions
lapse upon the achievement of continued employment over a specified period of time (time-based restricted
stock awards).

The following table summarizes information about time-based restricted stock awards:

Number of Shares

Fiscal Year 2005 2004 2003

Outstanding, beginningof year.................. ... ... .... 212,035 73,025 180,550
Granted .. ... . 224,300 162,355 10,350
Exercised .. ... ... (14,375) (10,925) (102,350)
Cancelled/Forfeited ........ ... ... .. .. . i (63,180) (12,420)  (15,525)
Outstanding, end of year .......... ... ... ... 358,780 212,035 73,025

In fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company granted time-based restricted stock awards with average per
share fair values of $27.84, $18.45 and $19.88, respectively.

Restricted Stock — Performance-Based Awards

The performance awards approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors are issued
only upon the achievement of specific measurable performance criteria. Performance can be achieved on three
different levels, a minimum (“Threshold”), midpoint (“Target”) or a maximum (“Superior”). The number of
performance award shares earned shall be determined at the end of each performance period, generally three
years, based on performance measurements determined by the Board of Directors and may result in an award
of restricted stock at that time. Generally, performance award shares are subject to the performance criteria of
compound annual growth in net income over the performance period, as adjusted for certain items approved
by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (“Adjusted Net Income”). The purpose of these
adjustments is to ensure a consistent year-to-year comparison of the specified performance measure.

Performance share target awards for the fiscal 2005-2007 performance period require adjusted net income
growth in line with the Company’s internal projections over the performance period. In the event adjusted net
income exceeds the target projection, additional shares up to the Superior Award may be granted. In the
event adjusted net income falls below the target projection, a reduced number of shares as few as the
Threshold Award may be granted. If adjusted net income falls below the Threshold Award performance level,
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no performance award shares will be granted. In addition, 36,000 stock equivalent units, with predefined
gualitative performance measures are included in the performance share awards assigned in 2005,

The fotlowing table summarizes information about performance-based restricted stock awards:

Estimated Future Payouts
Under 1998 Incentive Plan

Fiscal 2005 Award ) Thrashold Target Superior
Assigned .. ... 205,450 410,900 616,350
Cancelled/Forfeited ........... .. ... . .. ... .. (26,800) (53,600) (80,400)
Remaining, end of year . ............ .. i 178,650 357,300 535,950

) The number of shares represents the award amounts payable beginning in fiscal 2008 if earned for the
fiscal years 2005- 2007 and would be granted at a price of $27.95.

Note 9 — Savings Plan and Postretirement Benefits

The Company sponsors the Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. 401(k) Savings Plan (the “Savings Plan”), which is a tax
deferred savings plan whereby eligible employees may elect quarterly to contribute up to the lesser of
15 percent of annual compensation or the statutory maximum. The Company makes a 50 percent matching
contribution in the form of the Company's common stock, up to a maximum employee contribution of four
percent of the employee’s annual compensation. Employer contributions of the Company’s common stock have
been made through the issuance of shares out of treasury or by purchasing shares on the open market. The
amount of the Company’s matching contributions during fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $1.0 million,
$1.0 million and $0.9 million, respectively. Plan assets included 976,329 common shares with a fair market
value of $26.0 million at January 29, 2005. Holders of the common shares are entitled to vote their
respective shares.

The Company does not provide postretirement health care benefits for its employees.

Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in various litigation matters in the ordinary course of its business. The
Company is not currently involved in any litigation, which it expects, either individually or in the aggregate,
will have a material adverse effect on its financial condition or results of operations.

Note 11 — Leases

With the exception of one superstore, all of the Company’s retail stores operate out of leased facilities.
Traditional store leases generally have initial terms of five to ten years and renewal optigns-for up to
20 years. Superstore leases generally have initial terms of 10 to 15 years and renewal options generally
ranging from 5 to 20 years. The Company also leases certain computer and store equipment, with lease terms
that are generally five years or less.

The Company recognizes lease expense for step rent provisions, escalation clauses, rent holiday, capital
improvement funding and other lease concessions using the straight-line method over the minimum lease
term. The Company does not have lease arrangements that have minimum lease payments dependent on an
existing index or rate, such as the consumer price index or the prime interest rate. Certain leases contain
escalation clauses and provide for contingent rents based on a percent of sales in excess of defined
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minimums. In certain instances, the Company is required to pay its pro rata share of real estate taxes and
common area maintenance expenses.

The following is a schedule of future minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases.
Future minimum rental payments are reduced by $11.2 million of sublease income.

Minimum
Fiscal Year-Ended Rentals
(Dollars in millions)
2006 .. e e $134.1
2007 o 126.2
2008 L 110.1
2000 L 80.8
2000 e 67.6
Thereafter ... 268.8

$787.6
Rent expense excluding common area maintenance and real estate taxes was as follows:
Fiscal Year-Ended 2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in millions) (Restated) (Restated)
Minimum rentals .. ...... ... . ... $132.5 $126.2 $119.8
Contingent ventals ...... ... ... .. . . i 3.6 3.6 4.1
Sublease rentals . ....... . ... . (9.4) (8.6) (7.5)

$126.7 $121.2 $116.4

Note 12 — Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The Company has restated all net income and earnings per share amounts to reflect certain adjustments
as discussed in “Restatement of Prior Financial Information” in Note 2 to the notes to consolidated financial
statements. Summarized below are the unaudited results of operations by quarter for fiscal 2005 and 2004:

First Second Third Fourth
Fiscal 2005 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(Dollars in millions, except per share data) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
Netsales.......... ... .. .. $404.9 $371.0 $448.3 $588.2
Gross Margin. . .....ovitint i 199.0 181.9 214.2 267.0
Netincome ... ... ... ... . i 6.7 0.3 6.9 32.3
Net income per common share:
Basic. ... ..o $ 0.31 $ 0.01 $ 0.31 $ 1.44
Diluted . ... ... . 0.30 0.01 0.30 1.40

Net income in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 increased approximately $1.2 million, net-of-tax, due to a
fourth quarter adjustment, which related to revisions of estimates affecting prior quarters. Gross margin
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increased by $1.9 million, pre-tax, as a result of adjustments to store and distribution center inventory shrink
reserves.

First Second Third Fourth

Fiscal 2004 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(Dollars in millions, except per share data) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
Netsales.......oo v, $374.8 $359.2 $447.5 $552.6
Gross margin. ... ... ... i 180.5 172.6 215.1 242.4
Netincome ... ... ... .. i 3.9 (2.4) 11.9 26.7
Net income per common share:

Basic . ... o $ 0.18 $(0.11) $ 0.55 3 124

Diluted ©. ..o . 0.18 (0.11) 053 120

Net income in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 increased approximately $1.4 million, net-of-tax, due to
certain fourth quarter adjustments, which related to revisions of estimates affecting prior quarters. Gross
margin increased by $1.0 million, pre-tax, as a result of adjustments to inventory shrink and clearance
reserves. Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $1.3 million, pre-tax, primarily as a result of
an adjustment to an incentive compensation accrual.

Note 13 — Consolidating Financial Statements

The Company’s 7.500 percent senior subordinated notes and credit facility are fully and unconditionally
guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. The senior
subordinated notes are subordinated to the Company’s credit facility. The Company has restated its
consolidated financial statements for changes in operating expenses and depreciation expense for all previous
years presented, due to revision of certain lease accounting practices, to reflect certain adjustments as
discussed in “Restatement of Prior Financial Information” in Note 2 to the notes to consolidated financial
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statements. Summarized consolidating financial information of the Company (excluding its subsidiaries) and
the guarantor subsidiaries as of and for the years ended January 29, 2005 is as follows:

January 29, 2005 January 31, 2004 (Restated)

Guarantor Guarantor
Parent Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated Parent Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Consolidating
Balance Sheets

(Dollars in millions)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents........... $ 76.6 $ 3.0 $ $ 79.6 $ 14.3 $ 31 $ $17.4
Inventories ............ ... oint. 159.6 280.1 439.7 154.0 250.6 404.6
Deferred income taxes .............. 16.5 4.8 21.3 17.6 4.3 21.9
Prepaid expenses and other current
assets ... 14.3 8.0 22,3 15.1 8.4 __23_5
Total current assets .................. 267.0 295.9 - 562.9 201.0 266.4 — 467.4
Property, equipment and leasehold
improvements, net ................. 106.9 1311 238.0 89.1 129.3 218.4
Goodwill, met ................. ... —_ 27.1 27.1 — 26.5 26.5
Other assets ................covenn. 9.8 1.5 11.3 6.1 1.4 7.5
Investment in subsidiaries............. 90.6 - (90.6) - 53.3 — (63.3) —
Intercompany receivable .............. 295.4 — (295.4) — 331.7 — (331.7) —
Total assets............c.oovvii.... $769.7 $455.6 $(386.0) $839.3 $681.2 $423.6 $(385.0) $719.8
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable .................. $155.8 $ 114 $ $167.2 $112.0 $ 10.0 $ $122.0
Accrued EXpenses . .. .........hia.. 71.8 19.8 91.6 78.9 (2.7) _16.2
Total current labilities................ 227.6 31.2 — 258.8 190.9 7.3 — 198.2
Long-termdebt ............... ... ... 100.0 — 100.0 113.7 — 113.7
Deferred income taxes ................ 7.8 19.8 27.6 15.1 17.8 32.9
Lease obligations and other long-term
abilities. .......... .. ..o il 25.4 18.6 44.0 20.7 13.5 34.2
Intercompany payable ................ — 295.4 (295.4) — — 331.7 (331.7) —
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock .................... — —_ — — — —
Common stock ......... ... 1.3 — 1.3 1.3 - 1.3
Additional paid-in capital ........... 151.8 — 151.8 129.0 — 129.0
Retained earnings ................. 299.6 90.6 (90.6) 299.6 253.4 53.3 (53.3) 253.4
Accumulated other comprehensive loss — — — (1.6) — _(1.6)
452.7 90.6 (90.6) 452.7 382.1 53.3 (53.3) 382.1
Treasury stock, atcost.............. (43.8) — - (43.8) (41.3) — — _{41.3)
Total shareholders’ equity ............. 408.9 90.6 (90.6) 408.9 340.8 53.3 (53.3) 340.8
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ~ $769.7 $455.6 $(386.0) $839.3 $681.2 $423.6 $(385.0) $719.8
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Fiscal Year-Ended

January 29, 2005 January 31, 2004 (Restated)

Consolidating Statement Guarantor Guarantor
of Operations Parent  Subsidiaries Wimination € \id parent  Subsidiaries  Eliminations  Consolidated
(Dollars in millions)
Net sales $986.9 §1,293.0 $(467.5) $1,812.4 $950.3 $1,153.2 $(369.4) $1,734.1
Cost of sales. 590.0 827.8 (467.5) 950.3 567.5 725.4 (369.4) 923.5
Gross margin 396.9 465.2 - 862.1 382.8 427.8 — 810.6
Selling, general and
administrative expenses...... 341.7 359.1 700.8 329.3 335.5 664.8
Store pre-opening and closing
€osts .o 9.6 8.9 18.5 6.4 6.9 13.3
Depreciation and amortization .. 18.4 24.6 43.0 15.3 23.7 39.0
Stock-based compensation
BXPeNSE. .. 7.7 — 7.7 6.4 - 6.4
Debt repurchase and share
reclassification expenses ... .. 4.2 — . 4.2 _ 55 — _ 5.5
Operating profit ............ 15.3 72.6 — 87.9 617 — 81.6
Interest expense, net.......... 0.9 12.8 13.7 5.1 11.4 16.5
Income before income taxes .. 14. 59.8 — 74.2 50.3 — 65.1
Income tax provision.......... 5 22.5 28.0 7.2 17.8 25.0
Income before equity income 8.9 37.3 — 46.2 7. 32,5 — 40.1
Equity income from subsidiaries 37.3 — (31.3) — 32.5 (32.5) —
Net income $§ 373 $ (37.3) $  46.2 $ 40.1 $ 325 $ (32.5) $ 401
Fiscal Year-Ended February 1, 2003 (Restated)
Guarantor
Consolidating of Operations Parent Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(Dollars in mitlions)
Nt SlES . o vttt e $924.7  $1,525.6 $(768.3) $1,682.0
Cost Of Sales ... e 562.1 1,110.7 {768.3) 904.5
GFOSS MAFGIN L ottt e et e e e e e e 362.6 414.9 — 777.5
Selling, general and administrative eXpeNnses ........ ... .oiviiiiiiiiiiai 318.2 315.0 633.2
Store pre-opening and clasing COSES ... ... .uuut it (0.5) 6.3 63
Depreciation and amortization ... .. ... ..ot 14.0 23.9 37.9
Stock-based COMPENSATION BXPENSE L. ..t .ttt vt e e et e 0.2 — 0.2
Debt repurchase and share reclassification expenses. . .............. i, 1.9 — 1.9
Operating profit . . 28.8 69.2 — 98.0
Interest expense, net 8.5 16.2 24.7
Income before NCOME FAXES ... ..o \o ottt e 20.3 53.0 — 733
INCOME 1aX PROVISION . . ..\ttt ettt it et e e e e 9.1 18.8 27.9
Income before equity Tncome . ... ... ..o i i 11.2 34.2 — 45.4
Equity income from subsidiaries .. ... ... ... oo oo 34.2 — (34.2) -
NEE MCOME . 1 et ettt e e e e $454 § 342 $ (34.2) $  45.4

64




Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 13 — Consolidating Financial Statements (Continued)

Fiscal Year-Ended

January 29, 2005 January 31, 2004 (Restated)
Consolidating Statements Guarantor Guarantor
of Cash Flows Parent Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated Parent Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(Dollars in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities  $117.5 $ 24.4 $— $141.9 $ 31.0 $ 20.7 $ — $ 51.7
Net cash flows used for investing

activities:

Capital expenditures. ............... (42.6) (24.5) - (67.1) (37.0) (20.6) — (57.6)

Proceeds from sale of equity

investment ............. ... ... - e = — 6.5 — = _ 65
Net cash used for investing activities ...  (42.6) (24.5) - (67.1) (30.5) (20.6) — (51.1)
Net cash flows used for financing
activities:
Proceeds from issuance of 7.5% senior
subordinated notes, net........... 97.4 - — 97.4 - — — -
Purchase of 10%/s% senior subordinated
OEES . . v ev e ee e e (66.6) — — (66.6) (61.7) — — (61.7)
Net change in revolving credit facility (49.3) — (49.3) 9.3 — — 9.3
Proceeds from stock-based
compensation plans .............. 10.0 — -— 10.0 6.6 — - 6.6

Other,met........... ... ... .. ... (4.1) = = (4.1) (0.6) — = _(0.6)
Net cash used for financing activities ... _(12.6)  — _~ (12.6) (46.4) — = _(46.4)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents ................... ... 62.3 (0.1) — 62.2 (45.9) 0.1 — (45.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

ofyear ... 14.3 _ 31 = 17.4 60.2 3.0 = _63.2
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  § 76.6 $ 3.0 $— $ 79.6 $ 14.3 $ 3.1 $— $174

Fiscal Year-Ended February 1, 2003 (Restated)
Guarantor
Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows Parent Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(Dollars in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities . ....... .. ... $1076 § 121 3 — $ 119.7
Net cash flows used for investing activities:

Capital expenditlures .. ... ..o i (10.5) (12.7) — (23.2)
Net cash used for investing activities .. ....... ... .. i i e (10.5) (12.7) — (23.2)
Net cash flows used for financing activities:

Purchase of 10%/:% senior subordinated notes ....... ..ot (28.3) — — (28.3)

Net change in revolving credit facility........... . ..o i (33.7) — — (33.7)

Proceeds from stock-based compensation plans .......... . i 10.0 — — 10.0

Other, Met .. (2.4) — — (2.4)
Net cash used for financing activities ....... .. .. . .. (54.4) — — (54.4)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .......... ... ... ... . ... L. 42.7 (0.6) — 42.1
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.......... ... i 17.5 3.6 — 21.1
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year .. ... . . i $ 602 § 3.0 5 — $ 632

65




Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures — The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company’s reports under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC”) rules and forms, and
that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFQ"), as appropriate, to altow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures,
management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can
provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, as the Company’s are designed
to do, and management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit
relationship of possible controls and procedures.

In connection with the preparation of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, as of January 29, 2005, an
evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management,
including the CEOQ and CFO, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act).

On February 7, 2005, a letter was issued by the Office of the Chief Accountant of the SEC to the Center
for Public Company Audit Firms of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, which clarified
existing generally accepted accounting principles applicable to leases and leasehold improvements (the “SEC
Letter”). The Company has consistently accounted for leases in accordance with its interpretation of generally
accepted accounting principtes (“GAAP”) and common industry practice. However, following a review of the
SEC Letter, management reviewed the Company's lease accounting practices, and after discussion by
management and the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company with its
independent registered public accounting firm, the Company determined that its historical accounting for
leases was not consistent with the accounting principles described in the SEC Letter.

Accordingly, as described below, the Company decided to restate its previously issued financial
statements to reflect the correction of an error in the Company’s lease accounting practices. The Company
does not believe the differences in prior years’ financial statements were materiat to any individual year
presented. See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for a full discussion of the effects of these
changes to the Company’s consolidated balance sheets as of January 31, 2004, as well as on the Company's
consolidated statements of operaticns and cash flows for fiscal years 2004 and 2003. Based on this review of
its lease accounting practices, the Company’s CEO and CFO concluded that the Company's disclosure controls
and procedures were not effective as of January 29, 2005.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting — Management of the Company
is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f} under the Exchange Act. The Company's internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair
presentation of published financial statements. All internal control systems, no matter how welt designed,
have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as
of January 29, 2005. In making its assessment of internal control over financial reporting, management used
the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (“C0SQ") of the Treadway Commission in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework.

In performing this assessment, management reviewed the Company’s lease accounting practices in light
of the SEC Letter, As a result of this review, management concluded that the Company’s controls over the
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selection and monitoring of appropriate assumptions and factors affecting lease accounting practices, while
consistent with common industry practice, were insufficient in light of the SEC Letter. On March 2, 2005, the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and senior management decided to restate
certain of the Company's previously issued financial statements to conform to the guidance provided in the
SEC Letter.

Management evaluated the impact of the restatement for lease accounting changes on the Company’s
assessment of its system of internal control and has concluded that the control deficiency that resulted in the
incorrect lease accounting practices represents a material weakness. A material weakness in internal control
over financial reporting is a control deficiency (within the meaning of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (“PCAOB”) Auditing Standard No. 2), or combination of control deficiencies, that results in
there being more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected. PCAOB Auditing Standard No. 2 identifies a number of
circumstances that, because of their likely significant negative effect on internal control over financial
reporting, are to be regarded as strong indicators that a material weakness exists, including the restatement
of previously issued financial statements to reflect the correction of an error.

As a result of this material weakness in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, solely
stemming from the restatement for lease accounting changes, management has concluded that, as of
January 29, 2005, the Company's internal control over financial reporting was not effective based on the
criteria set forth by the COSO of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control — Integrated Framework.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, has issued an
attestation report on management’s assessment of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
This report appears below.

Remediation Steps to Address Material Weakness — To remediate the material weakness in the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting, subsequent to year end the Company has implemented additional
review procedures over the selection and monitoring of appropriate assumptions and factors affecting lease
accounting practices. No other material weaknesses were identified as a result of management’s assessment.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting — There were no changes in the Company's internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the Company's last fiscal quarter that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, that Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. did not maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting as of January 29, 2005, because of the effect of the Company's insufficient
controls over the selection and monitoring of appropriate assumptions and factors affecting its lease
accounting practices, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Jo-Ann Stores, Inc.’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company's internal control
over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary ta permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood. that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not
be prevented or detected. The following material weakness has been identified and included in management’s
assessment: In its assessment as of January 29, 2005, management identified as a material weakness the
Company'’s insufficient controls over the selection and monitoring of appropriate assumptions and factors
affecting its lease accounting practices. The material weakness was identified by management subsequent to
January 29, 2005, as a result of a letter issued on February 7, 2005, by the Office of the Chief Accountant of
the Securities and Exchange Commission to the Center for Public Company Audit Firms of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The letter provided additional clarification concerning the
appropriate application of generally accepted accounting principles to the accounting for lease transactions.
As a result of this material weakness in internal control, Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. concluded that the Company’s
previously issued financial statements should be restated, as discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements. This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit
tests applied in our audit of the fiscal 2005 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect
our report dated March 31, 2005 on those financial statements.
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In our opinion, management’s assessment that Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. did not maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting as of January 29, 2005 is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the
COSO control criteria. Also, in our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness described above on
the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. has not maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of January 29, 2005, based on the COSO control criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. as of January 29, 2005 and
January 31, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, cash flows, and shareholders’ equity
for each of the three years in the period ended January 29, 2005, and our report dated March 31, 2005
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
March 31, 2005

Item 9B. Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information required by this Item 10 as to the Directors of the Registrant is incorporated herein by
reference to the information set forth under the caption “Nominees to and Current Members of the Board of
Directors” in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statement for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be
held on June 9, 2005 (the “Proxy Statement”), which is expected to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 within 120 days after the end
of the Company’s fiscal year.

The information regarding the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors and the information regarding
“audit committee financial experts” are incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under
the caption “Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors — Audit Committee” in the Proxy Statement.

Information required by this Item 10 as to the Executive Officers of the Registrant is included under
Item 4 of Part I of this Form 10-K as permitted by Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K.
Information required by Item 405 of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to the information set
forth under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Proxy Statement.

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the “Code™), applicable to the
Company’s directors, officers (including the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial
officer) and employees, which has been filed as an exhibit to this Form 10-K. The Company has posted a copy
of the Code on its website at www.joann.com, and intends to post any amendments to the Code on its
website. In addition, any waivers of the Code for the directors or executive officers of the Company will be
disclosed in a report on Form 8-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth
under the captions “Compensation of Directors” and “Executive Compensation” in the Proxy Statement.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth
under the caption “Principal Shareholders” in the Proxy Statement.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance

Number of securities to under equity
be issued upon ighted age comp ion plans
exercise of exercise price of (excluding
outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected
warrants and rights warants and rights in column (a})
Plan category (3) b) (¢)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders .. ... ..o o il 2,248,797 $14.22 1,087,997
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders ¥ ... 45,000 7.75 —
Total ... 2,293,797 $14.09 1,087,997

) On February 9, 2001, the Company registered 319,000 common shares to be issued in connection with
options to purchase common shares pursuant to award agreements with certain employees. The options
were granted under the rules provided for in the 1998 Incentive Compensation Plan. As of January 29,
2005, 45,000 of the 319,000 securities registered remain to be issued.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Ira Gumberg, one of our Directors, is President and Chief Executive Officer and a principal shareholder of
J.J. Gumberg Co., a real estate development and investment company. J.J. Gumberg, Co. manages numerous
shopping centers, ten of which contain stores of our Company. The owners of the varfous shopping centers
managed by J.J. Gumberg Co. are separate legal entities (individually referred to as “shopping center entity”)
in which Mr. Gumberg or his immediate family may have some investment interest. Four of the leases were
entered into after Mr. Gumberg became a Director of our Company, and we believe such leases are on terms
no less favorable to us than could have been obtained from an unrelated party. The aggregate rent and
related occupancy charges paid by the Company during fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 to the shopping center
entities for various stores under lease amounted to $2.1 million, $1.6 million and $1.4 million, respectively.

Betty Rosskamm, Alma Zimmerman and the Company are parties to an agreement, dated October 30,
2003, relating to their Jo-Ann Stores Common Shares. Under this agreement, Betty Rosskamm and her lineal
descendants and permitted holders (the “Rosskamms”) and Alma Zimmerman and her lineal descendants and
permitted holders (the “Zimmermans”) may each sell up to 400,000 Common Shares in any calendar year and
may not sell more than 200,000 of those shares in any 180-day period. If either the Rosskamms or
Zimmermans plan to sell a number of their respective Common Shares in excess of the number permitted
under the agreement, they must first offer to sell those shares to the other family party and to the Company.
Each of the Rosskamms and the Zimmermans are permitted to sell an unlimited number of shares to each
other free of the Company’s right of first refusal and, with the permission of the other family party to the
agreement, to the Company.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth
under the caption “Principal Accounting Firm Fees” in the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)
(1)

(3)

Exhibit
Number

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

The following documents are filed as part of this report:
Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements filed as part of this Form 10-K are located as set forth in the
index on page 35 of this report.

Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is
included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the Index to Exhibits, which appears on pages 71 through 72 of this
Form 10-K, are incorporated herein by reference or filed as part of this Form 10-K.

Index to Exhibits

Exhibit Description

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. (filed as an Exhibit 3.1 to the
Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on December 15, 2003 and incorporated herein by
reference)

Amended and Restated Code of Regulations (filed as an Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q
filed with the Commission on December 15, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference)

Second Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated November 4, 2003, between the Registrant
and National City Bank, as Rights Agent (filed as an Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed
with the Commission on April 15, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference)

Indenture between the Registrant and Jo-Ann Stores Supply Chain Management, Inc., Team Jo-Ann,
Inc., FCA of Ohio, Inc., and House of Fabrics, Inc., as guarantors, and National City Bank, as trustee
relating to the 7.50% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2012, including the form of note (filed as an
Exhibit 4.4 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed with the Commission on April 15, 2004 and
incorporated herein by reference)

Form of Split Dollar Life Insurance Agreement between the Registrant and certain of its officers (filed
as an Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-X filed with the Commission on May 2, 2003 and
incorporated herein by reference)*

List of Executive Officers who are parties to the Split Dollar Life Insurance Agreement with the
Registrant®

Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan, as amended (filed as an Exhibit 10.5 to
the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed with the Commission on May 2, 2003 and incorporated herein by
reference)*

List of Executive Officers who participate in the Registrant’s Supplemental Retirement Plan, as
amended*

Employment Agreement dated July 30, 2001 between the Registrant and Alan Rosskamm (filed as an
Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed with the Commission on May 2, 2002 and
incorporated herein by reference)*

Form of Employment Agreement between the Registrant and certain Executive Officers (filed as an
Exhibit 10.7.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed with the Commission on May 2, 2002 and
incorporated herein by reference)*

List of Executive Officers who are parties to an Employment Agreement with the Registrant*
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Exhibit
Number

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19
14
21

23
24
311
31.2
32.1

Exhibit Description

Fabri-Centers of America, Inc. 1990 Employees Stock Option and Stock Appreciation Rights Plan, as
amended (filed as an Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed with the Commission on May 2,
2003 and incorporated herein by reference)*

Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. (formerly Fabri-Centers of America, Inc.) 1998 Incentive Compensation Plan, as
amended (filed as an Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant's Form 10-K filed with the Commission on

April 15, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference)*

Agreement dated October 30, 2003 among Jo-Ann Stores, Inc., Betty Rosskamm and Alma
Zimmerman (Second Amended and Restated) (filed as an Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K
filed with the Commission on April 15, 2004 and incorperated herein by reference)*

Credit Agreement dated as of April 24, 2001 among the Registrant, as borrower, Fleet National Bank,
as Issuing Bank, Fleet Retail Finance Inc., as Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent, Congress
Financial Corporation, as Documentation Agent, GMAC Commercial Credit, LLC, National City
Commercial Finance, Inc. and The CIT Group/Business Credit, Inc., as Co-Agents, and Fleet Securities
Inc., as Arranger and Syndication Agent (filed as an Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Form 10-Q filed
with the Commission on June 19, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference)

Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement dated as of April 24, 2001 (filed as an Exhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on June 19, 2001 and incorporated herein by
reference)

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of March 17, 2003 (filed as an Exhibit 10.13 to the
Registrant’s Form 10-K filed with the Commission on April 15, 2004 and incorporated herein by
reference)

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of February 18, 2004 (filed as an Exhibit 10.14 to
the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed with the Commission oni April 15, 2004 and incorporated herein by
reference)

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated April 16, 2004 (filed as an Exhibit 10.15 to the
Registrant’s Form $-4 filed with the Commission on May 24, 2004 and incorporated herein by
reference)

Fabri-Centers of America, Inc. Executive Incentive Plan (filed as an Exhibit 11 to the Registrant’s
Form 10-K filed with the Commission on May 2, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference)*
Fabri-Centers of America, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors (filed as an
Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed with the Commission on May 4, 2001 and
incorporated herein by reference)*

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement of the Registrant (filed as an Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 23, 2005 and incorporated herein by
reference)*

Description of Executive Compensation Arrangements of the Registrant (incorporated herein by
reference to Item 1.01 of Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on March 23, 2005)*

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (filed as an Exhibit 14 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed with
the Commission on April 15, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference)

Subsidiaries of Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. (filed as an Exhibit 21 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed with
the Commission on April 15, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference)

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors

Power of Attorney

Section 302 Certification By Chief Executive Officer

Section 302 Certification By Chief Financial Officer

Section 906 Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer

* Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Jo-ANN STORES, INC.

By: /s/ ALAN ROSSKAMM April 14, 2005

Alan Rosskamm
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature . Title
/s/__ALAN Rosskamm Chairman of the Board and Director
Alan Rosskamm (Chief Executive Officer)
/s/ _BRIAN P. CARNEY* Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Brian P, Carney (Chief Accounting Officer)

/s/ Scorr Cowen*
Scott Cowen Director

/s/ Ira GUMBERG*
Ira Gumberg Director

/s/  PATRICIA MORRISON*
Patricia Morrison Director

/s/ Frank Newman*
Frank Newman Director

/s/ BERYL RarF*
Beryl Raff Director

/s/ GREGG SEARLE*
Gregg Searle Director

/s/  TRACEY THOMAS TRAVIS®
Tracey Thomas Travis Director

The undersigned, by signing his name hereto, does hereby sign this Form 10-K Annual Report on behalf
of the above-named officers and directors of Jo-Ann Stores, Inc., pursuant to powers of attorney executed on
behalf of each of such officers and directors.

*By: /5/ ALAN RoSskaMM April 14, 2005
Alan Rosskamm, Attorney-in-Fact
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Store Sugpet Lexter

Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. = 5555 Darrow Road = Hudson, OH 44236 = 330-656-2600

JAS

The company’'s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol JAS.
At the close of business April 1, 2005, the company had 855 shareholders of record. NYSE.

The company did not pay cash dividends on its common stock during fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004. The company’s
dividend policy has been to retain earnings for the operation and growth of its business. Payments of dividends,

if any, in the future will be determined by the Board of Directors in light of appropriate business conditions.

A copy of the company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 29, 2005, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), is enclosed herein. Additional information about the company,
including complimentary copies of Form 10-K and other reports filed with the SEC, are available online at
www.joann.com or from:

Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. = Attn: Investor Relations Department = 5555 Darrow Road = Hudson, OH 44236
investorrelations@jo-annstores.com

National City Bank = Corporate Trust Operations c© P.0. Box 92301 = Cleveland, OH 44193-0900

June 9, 2005 = 9:00 a.m. at Hilton Garden Inn = 8971 Wilcox Drive ~ Twinsburg, OH 44087

Trademarks in this report are the registered property of the company.
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